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" competmve posmon in the h1gh—growth

z navigation marketplace. Our leadership

' in technology and innovation 1s key to our
: : success. Qur product innovation cycle is

' A S — accelerating as we invest and expand our
development teams. We continue to build
the capabilities of our navigation platform.
As a result, we are able to offer our
customers the best and most connected
navigation technology and mobility
solutions in the market.

TormTom HOME {tap) We are constantly striving to attract

TOQTO”‘ HOME, our propretary new buyers to the navigation market.
sortware application thii works , . . .
on both PCs ang Macs, allows users We explore innovative ways In which we
ta manage the content on their can enhance TomTom's brand awareness
TornTom PND. and expand our global footprint. We
TomTom WORK (botiom) achieve this by diversifying and expanding
- TomTom WORK combines tracking our product and service portfolio. As a
and racing with navigation for result, TomTomn’s growth will remain

business usas. strong and we will continue to lead the

personal navigation market.

Case study

— Planned navigation starts

at HOMIE

TomTom HOME, our umigue and
innovative free software application,
allows users to manage the content on
their device, or enhance it by downloading
extras online. The range of content is wide
and itincludes the latest maps and add-
ons such as voices, weather, traffic and
safety cameras. TomTom GO 910 users
can also play music and view photos
downloaded through TomTom HCME.

Case study

— Connected navigation starts

at WORK

Tomiom WORK is & connectad
navigation solution for husinesses that
combines tracking-and-tracing technology
with smart navigation. This innovative
combination allows easy two-way
connectivity between cars, dispatchers,
fleet managers and drivers, streamlining
daily management and communication

D [fivcﬂj I @ & Em @@d betwween vehicle fleets and office staf.
through Innevation...

Lriving ahead through innovation. . 3 TomTom Annual Report 2006







A new versatile solution

Qur new busmess unit TomTom
Mobility Solutions is developing the
next generauon premiumm trafic
senvice that wi'l be launched in the
second half of 2067

This service will be avalable to
CONSUMErs, government agencies -
and businesses.

Drving aheaad
I partnersinie..

Driving ahead in parthership...

o= g ey 7= = b
with our retail, distribution and business
partners. Our retailers are essentiat to
the promotion of our products and offer
our consumers a friendly, high-quality
service, often introducing first-time
buyers to the world of satellite navigation
technology. Their knowledge of the local
markets and the infrastructure they
provide to reach a large number of
potential customers is invaluable.

QOur products are manufactured and
assembled by a limited number of
specialist suppliers and we are constantly
looking for ways in which to improve our
supply chain. This helps us to enhance
product reliability, and the performance
and functionality of our finished products.

Case study

— Strategic Alliances

We are bulding the strategic partnerships
that strengthen TomTom's advance
towards the next level of navigation.

For instance, our new Busingss unit,
TamTom Mobility Solutions, has partnered
with Viedatone in the Netherlands to
deliver a navigation technology that will
revolutionise the way people plan their
daily journeys. Through TomTom's
patented technology and the collection

of data via the Vodafone network,
anonymous, raw signafling data will be
converted into accurate, real-time,
information about the speed and direction
of cars travelling thraughout the road
network of the Netherlands. It will provide
a much more accurate, faster and more
detailed picture of travel times than GPS
navigation system users are accustomed
10 today.

5 TomTom Annual Report 2006
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success, and TomTom is committed

10 attracting and retaining the best talent
in the market. We employ exceptional
people from more than 35 different
countries. As we build a truly global
organisation, we seek to motivate, inspire
and engage our people through open
dialogue, clear career opportunities and
fair reward.

We strive 10 keep an environment
at TomTom that is both challenging

W set clear, chalienging taigsts for and entrepreneurial, and we place
our paople and affer them e means great emphasis on fostering innovation,
Chiev N, dNd {0 MProvi ¥ o .
thel previous parfarmance creativity and teamwork. Qur enthusiasm
is founded on our peoples’ open spint,
{':f;':f("f:gﬁgq;ge&‘s’;g?f’é"g&? ;‘_;ér[‘l‘: : passion for results and get-things-done
nclitions « 7 OLf 220 . . . . .
© put their creativity and ambitions mindset, all of which are pNOtal in keeping
10 work wwards a better business TomTom a great place 10 work.
outcome,
Case study

— Attracting the right people

Being aware that TomTom was poised

to grow rapidly, we intensified our
recruitment efforts in 2006. Because

our people are key to achieving our goals,
we decided to roll out an international
recruitment campaign featuring TemTom
employees. We selected male and female
staff from many different countries and
with many cultural backgrounds who
represent our pecples’ values —passion
for resuits, open spirit and innovative
thinking. The result was a unique and a
highly successful TomTom recruitment
advertising campaign.

Driving ahead
WD enthusiasni...

Driving ahead with enthusiasm, . 7 TomTom Annual Report 2006
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MOST successiul year on record.

We doubled our revenues to nearly
€1.4 billion which, coupled with tight
cost control, helped us maintain
healthy margins and to be strongly
cash generative.

Last year saw personal navigation
beccme part of daily life for miliions

of people, as personal navigation tools
moved on from the early adapter phase
and became a well-established product
category. Feedback from our customers
and independent research has confirmed
our view that in-car navigation helps

to reduce both real and perceived
‘workload” for the driver and as such
contributes to reducing stress and
enhancing safety. There is also emerging
evidence that car navigation helps 10
reduce the number of miles driven and
this has associated benefits for congestion,
pollution and costs. Relatively low product
penetration levels continue to prevail and,
as a result, the fong-term opportunities
for sustainable growth are exciting.

We are proud about the leading role

we have played in developing this market.
In the last five years we have grown our
business from revenues of only €8 million
te €1.4 hbillion in 2006. \We have done this
whilst strengthening our market position
and preserving our margins. VWe have also
built a strong cash balance. These are all
good indicators that both our strategy and
business model are working.

Chief Executive's statement

and committed trading partners, we are

in an excellent position to maintain market
leadership and to develop the next generation
of navigation devices and services.

We have quickly matured into a
professional international organisation,
and have continued to increase our
employee levels to support and deliver
growth. Our peoptle are essential to
serving our customers and maintaining
the rmomentum of our innovation and
product development. TomTomiis an
exciting place to work, where creative and
talented people are shaping the future of
satellite navigation. We are dedicated to
continuing to attract, retain and develop
the best talent in the industry.

At the forefront of our success is our
commitment 1o delivering the most
innovative navigation products and services.
In 2006 we released our new TomTom
ONE and TomTom GO ranges and we
launched our TomTom HOME application
delivering a superior connected
environment to our customers. These
new solutions helped us bring navigation
to a broad spectrum of customers at

a number of different price points.

As a result, our market position continues
to be strong. We were once again the
leading provider of navigation devices

in Europe with a market share of around
50%. In the US we made good progress
and more than doubled our revenue.
The consumer and technology awards
our products received this year show
that we continue 1o offer the leading,
most innovative products and solutions
in the category.

"We are proud about the leading role we
have played in developing this market.
In the last five years we have grown our
business from revenues of only €8 million
to €1.4 billion in 2006."
Harold Goddijn
Chief Fxecutive

8 TomTom Annual Report 2006
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in 2006. We are thankful to each one

of them for their valuable expertise and
support, as well as for remaining as
comenitted to our relationship as we are.
This year we stepped up our efforts to
expand our distribution channels, and

we are excited 10 see TomTom products
selling well in 25 countries. This was

~ possible thanks to the continued increase
in the shelf space devoted to our products
across all key markets; ensuring that our
brand remains highly visible and that

our customers can easily find a TomTom.

An important milestone this year was
the launch of TomTom Mobility Solutions
after the successful integration of Applied
Generics, a company we acquired

in January 2006. Preparations to launch
the world’s most advanced real-time
Travel Time Information service in the
Netherlands based on this technology
are well underway. Reliable and highly
detailed travel time information is widely
seen as the most valuable content

for navigation services and will facilitate
intelligent and automatic optimised
routing for our users. This technology is
highly scalable and discussions to deploy
it in other countries are progressing.

Connected navigation became a reality

in March 2006 with the launch of TomTom
WORK, our vehicle fleet management
service which is novw operational

across Europe and the US. This business
enjoyed healthy sales growth, and is well
positioned to continue to extend its
position in commercial vehicte telematics
systems in 2007.

QOur success with plug-and-drive portable
navigation devices is now extending

into the automotive industry with semi-
integrated and integrated in-car navigaton.
Earlier this year, TomTom presented the
world's first portable navigation solution
for the automotive industry, which can
be attached to vehicles through the
dashboard or the radio. We believe

this recognises the robustness of our
software technology and confirms
TomTom as the brand of choice for
many car owners.

Chief Executive’s statement

market for intuitive personal navigation
solutions has barely been tapped. The
potential for greater product sophistication
and value-added services is fimited only by
the skills, imagination and technology in
which TomTom has been investing.
Consumer demand for straight-from-the-
box products will remain robust and
innovation will accelerate, creating new
opportunities for TomTom.

| am confident that our customer focus
and deep understanding of all relevant
technologies will allow us to cantinue
to shape the industry.

As we continue to build our cutting-
edge navigation technologies, we are
intensifying our efforts to recruit talented
engineers who will provide the skills and
talents we will require tomorrow.

We are determined to strengthen
TomTom's market position and leadership
in the development and marketing of
personal navigation solutions supported
by the continued protection of our
intellectual property.

TomTom is bringing personal navigation
o the mass market; we look forward to
continuing to be the benchmark against
which our competitors are judged. This
will be a year in which we continue to
put our energy and enthusiasm towards
meeting the personal navigation needs
of tomorrow’s customers. New, important
milestones await us and we have the
determination to reach them, because
we know that fantastic opportunities
will be created for everyone at TomTom
along the way.

e

Harold Goddijn
Chief Executive
22 February 2007

9 TomTom Annual Report 2006




products availagle 1o our customars.
Being first to market with innovative
products and services is one of our
ltey competitive advantages.

Car navigation

For more than 15 years TomTom has
focused on developing innovative and
smart products that exceed consumer
needs. Early on we recognised the huge
market potential of the newly emerging
navigation software, as it addressed a
fundamental need. Cur primary goal was
10 make navigation accessible for many
people so they could fully appreciate

the benetits of this new technology.
With that in mind, we focused con
developing simple, easy-to-use software
that would appeal 1o all car drivers, with
a user interface that could be quickly
understood, and on meeting the highest
quality standards.

When we launched the first GPS-linked
car navigation software for PDAs in 2002,
TomTom NAVIGATOR, the response
was ovenwhelming. However, 1o deliver
an even better navigation experience

it was essential to also control the
hardware. We evolved the product
further, combining it with hardware

in one stand-alone, fit-forpurpose unit.
Thus the TomTom GO was born, our first
portable navigation device (PND), which
quickly gained popularity and defined

the PND category.

The TomTom GO was acclaimed as a
smart, fun and reliable satellite navigation
solution. Ever since, we have continued to
concentrate on bringing to market what
CUSIOMErs want, receiving NUmerous
consumer awards along the way due to
the user-friendliness of our products. We
are successful in making complex
technology work in an intuitive, reliable
and simple way for all car drivers.

The TomTom way

and expand our distribution and retail
presence across the regions in which we
operate has been key to our success.
Our excelient "trusted partner’ approach
and our low product return rate make for
mutually beneficial relationships with
retailers. But, more importantly,

this means that it is very easy for our
customers to find a shop nearby that
sells a TomTom.,

The road ahead

Car navigation comes in several forms,
but PNDs will continue to be the growth
driver for the foreseeable future, as they
are uniquely fit-for-purpose products.
PNDs are becoming a product for the
mass market and although the market
remains widely untapped, over 10 million
devices were sold in 2006 alone. The
penetration of car navigation is increasing
rapidly and its growing popularity means
that we expect strong sales growth

to continue, particularly in Europe and
North America.

PNDs are becoming a tool for everyday
Iife for many people and drivers who are
increasingly able to save time and costs in
the planning and completion of journeys.
They are also seeing that PNDs reduce
stress in finding the best route to their
destination easily. Further, independent
research proves the positive influence

of sateliite navigation devices on

driving safety.

As penetration and dependency on

PNDs increases, an opportunity to further
enhance the quality of the experience

for the user has emerged. This is about
better and faster routing and more
seamless access to dynamic travel
information, such as real-time road and
traffic conditions. As technology develops,
PNDs wilt connect more effectively with
the network and more and maore add-con
features and services will become
available to car drivers. This will allow
better journey planning and enhanced
feature control from the office or

home computer.

10 TormTom Annual Report 2006
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increasing demand from businesses.
Companies are starting to realise that

it 1s possible to save costs and control
their fleets more efficiently through
the installation of in~vehicle navigation
systems. This is because greater
efficiency and security can be achieved
through the tracking and monitoring

of commercial vehicles.

et S T e

As the PND segment undergoes
important technological developmenits,
innovation will continue to be very
important. Technology advances will
create higher barriers to entry into the
market. TomTom'’s total focus on personal
navigation is a significant advantage. We
develop our own hardware and scftware
in-house which results in tight integration
in our products which, in turn, gives our
customers the best possible user
experience. This, together with our scale,
customer base and market reach, makes
it increasingly difficult for new entrants
to succeed in this market.

Pricrities

We defined the personal navigation
category and created a large market.
We are the world's largest ¢ar navigation
company with an installed base of over
eight million users.

Product differentiation is key to success
and we will continue to deliver a wide
range of innovative products and services.
We will also airm at a wider spectrum of
the market. This means attracting
consumers at a broader range of price
points and it is also about targeting more
business-to-business customers.

As part of our strategy, we regularly

look for ways to achigve the above

more cost-effectively, including

the relentless improvement of our supply
chain. This allows us to have a more
flexible manufacturing policy, to diversify
the sourcing of key components and
other materials, and to optimise our
product costs.

The TomTor way

as it is to nurture refationships with our
existing retailers to keep channels well
stocked. In 2007 we will continue to
focus on increasing shelf space and
on expanding our global network of
retail partners.

TomTom has carefully cultivated its
products to achieve a ‘'must-have’ status
amongst satisfied customers. We have
made navigation easy and smart, taking
much of the stress cut of planning and
completing journeys. Investment in
marketing and brand development has
heightened user awareness of the
quality of our products and the values
that TomTom represents. Sustained
investment in these areas will help us
protect and grow our market share,

The best way to remain vibrant and
current in the market is through satisfied
customers. We reward the trust vested
in TormTom by making sure we deliver
“future-proof’ products of the highest
quality, underwritten by outstanding
customer support. This will continue to
drive TomTom ahead of its compettors.

We monitor the quality of cur products
and engage openly with our customers.
This allows us 10 offer better customer
support and to buitd long-asting
relationships with them. This is invaluable
in identifying future customer needs,

placing TornTom in an excellent position to

spearhead the development of the next
generation of navigation.

We will make access to the network
easy and we will deliver superior, relevant
content. We believe that accurate, real-
time travel time infarmation is critical to

drive personal navigation to the next level,

Fundamentally better navigation is our
vision, and current and future TomTom
customers will benefit from this.

11 TormTom Annual Report 2006
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Products

two positon inthe US PNDs

than 4.7 million PND units.

Our PNDs are designed and

+ 270/0

onesigLse.

Revenue by region

€ 1 e

1 Surope 1,227

2 North Amenca 108

3 Rest of the worid k3!
Total 1,364

TomTom at a glance

Portable navigstion devices
TomTom is the world's ‘argest
provider of portab'e navigat on
devces (PWNDs), with a market share
of 50% 1n Europe and the numbser

accounted for €1 27 hillion of our
revenues in 2006, and we sold more

manuactured to offer smply the
hest navigation experience the best
arr.val through the best rout'ng, maps
and travel informanon availabie. Qur
nnovative desions focus or qualty,

h Revenue by product ease of use ang vaive. They are
1 BNDs 1268 Seamfessly rtegrated vatk our
2 SDASManchone 31 leading softweare technclogy ano
3 Other g5 hardware Thig provides our
Total 1,364 CUStOMTers with the most reliable,

intutive and fun nawgation products
avarable; products which alsg
happen to be the easiest and safest

TomTom’s PRDs are al-in-one
navigatien devices, which enable
cusiorrers to navigate rght ‘out-of-
the-box'. Qur PND proguct portfolio
consis:s of the Term o GO family,
the TomTorr ONE “ariiy and the
TomTom RIDER, the latter being a
product specifically for motorgyclists

- in March 2006 the new and
imgroved afllHncne TormTorr GO
range was launched: the TonTom
GO 510, GO 710 ard the GC 910,

— in May 20086, a rew ed'tion of the
TomTorn RIDER was launched,
row including maps of Western
Europe.

~—1n August 2006 the new Torr o
ONE Europe, ONE US ana
Canada, and TomTom ONE
Regional versions were launched.

Buicing 00 the features that have

made TomrTom devices so nopular,

the 2006 TomTom GO range offers:

— raw cuttrg-edge desgn

— bgquality, extra wde, 44nch
LCD touch screen

- grgatly improved GPS
perfoirmance

— hundreds of features and software
impraverrents

— the unigue ‘ree content
managenren porg TomTom
HOME

— the HOME dock, enabiing use’s to
cornect to TomTorm HOME
through their computer

—improved rardsdree ca.irg
functonality and safety camera
databases

— TomTom GC 910 has multi-
cortinental map coverage
includ ng the whole of Europe,
the US ard Canada, fully integrated
MP3 player and text-to-sneech
funciionality

TomTom RIDER, TomTom's portable

navigation device for motorcyclists,

has the following features

— vvater resistant, fits bcth
moterotkes and scooters

— provides clear spoken instrucions
in the driver’s helmet

—give rode tailored for s'mple
touch-screer cperaion wih
glaves on

The naw eduons of the 2006
TomTorn ONE product range irciude
tne folfowing “eatures:

—avatabile in two versions at 'wo
price ponts. Tomtom ONE
Europe, wth maps of Wes'emn
Europe; TomTom ONE Regional,
with maps per country or regior

— new irnovative flat design

— smaller size ara ever more ”
ightweight making it pocketable

— mproved scftware and new
features

— NEW accesscnes

Detais of the features applicable
to specific modeis can be found
on our wehsite
WWAV.IOMTIOM.COM .

We sell our products and services
through an extensive network of
retailers, the majority of whom are
served by several large distribution
compares. Addvonally, we self cur
products and senaces or re through
Qur website, www tomtom com,
and through some orire retalers.
TomTom's technology and products
are recognised as both fast and
rehabie by the majority of external
experts Ir 2008, the Corrpany won
over 150 awaras for our category-
defining product performance.

12 TomTom Annual Report 2006




Content and services
TomTorn also provides navigation
software products which integrate

(ﬁE‘\:ﬂ%
TemTom Mobility Sclutions is

developing a breakthrough service
that uses maobille network data fora

with thircHparty hand-hetd devices: rnore optimal rmanagement of road
the TomTom NAVIGATOR software  systerns through improved vehicle
for PDAs and TormTorm MOBILE nobility. Softdaunched in 2008,

riavigation software for smartphones.
In August 2006 the new version,
NAVIGATOR 6, was launched.

this technology uses real-tme traffic
information, ravoiutionising the way
people plan their daity journeys

Its wide releasa in the MNetherlands

FAddfonstand|services] is scheduted for the second half
TomTom PLUS gHers users locaton-  of 2007.

based cortent and services that tan
be downloaded onfine or wirelesshy
for easy nstallatior onto their PNDs,
I 2006, available content and
servieds included. New Maps,
QuickGPSfix™, Satety Cameras,
Traffic, Weather, Voices, Routes,
Points of Interest, Audiobogoks,
Buddies and Colour Schemaes.

¢ For mora information, please visit

v mobility tomtom com

_~ Details of these senvices can be

found on www lomiom comvplus

ToraTom HOME is the unique free
software epplicat:on that serves

s a portai 1o enable users to easily
download, store and manage any

of the above TomTom PLUS add-ons
and features on ther PC or Mae,

as wal s an easy link to bring them
searmlessly onto ther PND.

TomTor: WORK offers integrated,
connected navigation solutions for
business vehicle fleet management,
These solutions are available in the
Germany, UK, the Netherands,
Belgium, Ausyia ard the US.

.. Further details.are available on

-

WA EOMIOITIWOTK, GO

TornTom at a glance

Geographic reach

Locations we have operations in:
— Austrafia

— Austra

— Belgium

~- Canada

— China ~ Taiwan
-— Czecn Republic
— Denmark

— Finlarid

— France

— Germany

— Hungary

— krgland

e Wby

— Luxernboury
—the Netherlands
— Norway

— Poland

— Portugal

— South Africa

— Spain

— Swaeden

— Switzertand
—United Kingdom
— Unned] States of America

Europe
During 2008, TomTorr had

approxirnately a 50% market share

in Europe. Eurcpean safes made up
0% of our ravenue in 2006. TorrTom
is the market leader in Europe

North America

At the end of 2006, TomTom

had a 20% market share in North
Armenca. North Amencan sales
reprasentsd 8% of our rgvenue in
2006, TomTorn hotds the number
two positon in North America.

Rest of the world

In Austratia we continued our
success in the market achisving

a leaging market share and sales in
Austrafia representea 2% of our
revenue in 2008, Ir Tawan and South
Africa we launched some of our
products from the GO product family
at the end of 2006.

in 2006 we expanded our
gecgraphical footpring vy entering
the following new markets with our
porigble navigation products:

— Finland

— Hungary

—ireland

— Nonway

e Pigngd

— South Africa

- Taiwan

People

Our workforee mcreased by 88%
to & tota of B18 employees at the
end of 2008, to support TomTom's
rapid growth Inthe future we
anticoate continued growth in

our workforce worldwide.

Sue to the exs'osive growth of
TorrTom and the nature of our
business, we prefer o keep our
orgarusation fiesable and dynam'c

to market charges. Wa do ths by
provomng a so d mixture between
fxed ano lemporary Contracts,

AL the eng of 2006, 38% o our
empoyees had a fixed contract

and 62% a terporary contract.
Witn the excestion of our Custorner
Support employess, most empoyess
at TomTom wark ful-rme. In 2006,
87% of employees worked full-tme
and 13% worked parttinre.

In 2006 the geographical presence
of our workforce was as follows.,
Europe 87%, Honth America 7%,
Asa 5% and Australia 1%. Our
empayeas cerme from over 35
different natons.

13 TomTom Annuat Report 2006




strong year for TomTom. The
ralzase of new models, from the
TomTam ONE, our entry-level PND,
to the high-end TomTom GO 910,
enabled us to address a wider
audience of consumers than ever
before. Additionally, we launched
our business-to-business solution,
TomTom WORK, and we made
significant progress towards the
commercialisation of our unigue
iraffic information management
system through TomTom
Mobility Solutions.

This was also the year when we

updated our service offering by launching
a number of userfnendly add-ons to

the TomTom PLUS service package;

end we made these services more
easily accessible to users through

our new content management portal,
TomTom HOME.

QOur supply-chain management
strengthened, driving higher
manufacturing and product guality

and avaifability, and tighter inventory
management. Qur distribution channels
expanded to support growing
consumer demand.

We entered the markets in lreland,

South Africa and Taiwan for the first time.
TomTom products are now available in 25
countries worldwide. With market shares
of 50% in Europe and 20% in North
America, we can see the clear benefits
of our scale and reach in the market.

Our customer suppaort teams expanded
to support the growth of the Company.
We have in-house customer support as
we believe this ensures that the tight
feedback loop between the Company and
our customers is maintained. In turn this
helps us to continue to deliver products
which are easy to use and meet the real
needs of our customers.

Busingess review

ntegrated many new employees into
the organisation to ensure that we can
accelerate our product development,
grow our content and services solutions,
and exploit these activities with a

highly skilled sales force and efficient
operational infrastructure.

Product development

PNDs

In 2006 we launched two successors
to the world's best-selling portable
navigation devices, the TomTom ONE
and the TomTom GO.

The new TomTom GO range, launched

in March, includes three models, the

GO 910, the GO 710 and the GO 510.
The GO range is the premium range

and, as with all our PNDs, offers our
highly acclaimed personal navigation
solution straight out of the box, with maps
of different areas as required; and with
much additional functionality besides.

All three models can be used as a
hands-free car kit, as they are compatible
with Bluetooth™ wireless technology,
enabling users to make or accept phone
calls whilst navigating. The new pre-
installed safety camera database ensures
the navigation process is as safe and
convenient as currently possible.
Furthermore, the iPod®control enables
customers to operate their iIPod®
seamiessly via the TomTom touch-screen
functionality and to play music over the
built-in audio speaker or car stereo.

The new TomTom ONE range, launched
in August, provides TomTom'’s entry
level, al-in-one navigation product.

The TomTom ONE (Continental) features
comptete door-te-door navigation
anywhere in YWestern Europe or North
America, and the TormTorm ONE (Regional)
comes with maps of a country or region.
These models are portable and compact
enough to fit in a shirt pocket and can
easily be taken from car to car.

Both of these product ranges are very
successtul and the TomTom ONE has
become the best-selling PND worldwide.
We won more than 150 consumer
awards during the year.

i} More details on these add-ons can be found anline on

www tomtom.cormyprogucts
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and their suppliers to develop integrated  In January 2006 we acquired and '
satellite navigation systems. This helps successfully integrated Applied Generics
us and the car manufacturers better meet  Ltd. This became TomTom Mobility
consumer demands for cost-effective, Solutions, and its technology provides
easy-to-use and easy-to-update navigation realtime traffic information. In October
that features the latest innovations from 2006 we announced a strategic alliance
the PND world. with Vodafone in the Netherlands to jointly
bring this breakthrough technology to
For instance, with Johnson Controls we  market. We believe that this solution will
have jointly created a solution that will revolutionise the way people plan and
integrate a PND into vehicle electronics ~ make their daily car journeys.
systems from 2008, We have also
developed the world's first PNID that can  This development will see TomTom's
be embedded into vehicles through the  in-house patented technology convert

‘dashboard or the radio. As an evolution anonymous, raw GSM signalling

in this particular area, together with data — supplied by Vodafone's mobile
Fujitsu-TEN we have developed the first  phone network —into accurate, reak-time,
embedded double-DIN radio navigation information about the speed and direction

unit to feature a PND, the Eclipse of cars travelling throughout the road
AVN2210p. Also, in a pan-European network of the Netherlands. The
. partnership with SEAT, the TomTom technology has been tested and proven
GO 710 will be used as a semiintegrated  on a regional scale and this will be
satellite navigation solution for a range the world's first nationwide, commercial
of future SEAT models. deployment.
Software solutions TomTom Mahbility Solutions competes
g N August 2006, we launched with traditional ways of collecting traffic
& NAVIGATOR 6, which succeeded information such as induction loops and
<~ NAVIGATOR 5 and we merged it with cameras. It provides a much more
MOBILE 5 into one multi-platform accurate, faster and more detailed picture
solution. This new integrated sotution of the actual travel times than current
for hand-held devices is ideal for solutions. As a result, TomTom users will

TomTom GO 910 {iop)
TomTom ONE imiciclle

Integrated into the car (botiom)
The world's first PND that can be
embedded inio vahicles through the
dashboard or the radia.

Ml cus:omers who need their PDA/mMobile always be smart on the move, evenin

phone and navigation system integrated  congested areas.

in a single unit.

*, Detailed information about this solution is available on
waww.mobiity. [omigm.com

Content and services

in early 2006 we launched TormTom
HOME, the software application that
enables customers to make the most of
TomTom PLUS content and services from
their computer. TomTom HOME simplifies
the process of managing, downloading
and storing maps, traffic information and
other relevant content.

Case study

— The Dutch Brabant Cperation

The Dutch Brabant Operaticn, a
successiul partnership with LogicaCMG,
shows how TomTom Mobility Solutions
works in practice. The service delivers an
effective dynaric traffic control tool

for the local authorities in this province

The new and updated TomTom PLUS in the Netherlands.

services, available wirelessly and via C This reaktme serace can be seen oniine on
?om_Tom HOME, include: TQmTom wwwactugleverheersinformarie hl‘«]b;llﬁﬁi
Audiobooks, TomTom Buddies, TomTom {Dulch anguage orlyl

Safety Cameras, TomTom Quick GPS

Fix™ TomTom Traffic and Road

Conditions, and TormTom Weather.

7 More details on these add-ons can be found online on

WWW oMM, com/home
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Continued

Our new logo

In 2007 ToamTom refreshed its
carporate identity with a rew logo

to reflect its status as both the
world's leading brand in portable
navigation soiutions and a welr
established glohal company. This
meets the demands of an expanding
portiolio that includes new rmarkets,
such as fleet management and
public rraffic soluticns, ana new
cusiomers, such as large businesses
and governimens.

TornTon's g Drand value and
brand recogiition has been bult
unon by evowing the poputal red
hands logo to reflect the Cormpany's
growing siatus. With the new logo,
TormTon wal continue 10 be seen as
a cool brand, but alongside TomTony's
core values - smart, iInnovative,
accassible and modern - the new
logo a'so ref'ects the Company's
reliabiity. gua'ty, Sencushess

and leadeiship

TomTom ¢
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March 2006, following the integration
of Datafactory AG, which we acquired
in August 2005.

Originally a German-based operation,
TomTorm WORK's reach was extended
in 2006 to the UK, France, Benelux and
Austria. By the end of the year, its
customer base had grown to more than
14,000 active subscribers. TomTom
WORK combines tracking and tracing
technology with smart navtgation for
companies that require easy, two-way
communication between fleet managers
and drivers. We have grown into the
business-to-business area with a product
that offers an easy-to-use, effordable
solution. TomTom WORK allows fleet
owners to streamline daily management
and communication with their fleet

and staff.

{*. For more details on TomTom WORK, please refer to
wwwwork tomicm.com

Supply chain and distribution

in 2006 we expanded our manufacturing
so that we had two manufacturing
partners building TomTom products,

up from ane in the previous year. This
strategy was a success as it enabled us
to reduce the level of risk asscciated
with being dependent on a single
manufacturing partner. We also greatly
reduced the number of single-sourced
components used in the manufacture of

our products. This improves the continuity

of companent supply and ensures
component pricing is competitive.

Business review
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for example to enable the team to utilise
advanced simulation and product release
testing scenarios and tools. As a result,
we will be able to improve the overall
reliability and performance of TomTom
products even further, which is essential
for us to maintain best-of-class functionality
across all TomTom products and
accessories.

The bulk of our sales are made through
retailers, and we place great emphasis

on cur relationships with cur retail
partners. It is these retailers who employ
the people who operate on the shop floor,
actively promoting our products and often
introducing consumers to the world

of satellite navigation technalogy for

the first ime. We supply the majority

of these retailers through our network

of distribution partners, who also play

a key role in educating new users and
retailers, in promoting our products, and
in ensuring TomTom reaches the widest
possible audience.

In 2006 we were delighted to see a
steady increase in the volume of shelf
space devoted to TomTom products in
every location. Qur retall presence in
North America showed particularty
healthy growth: the number of stores
with TomTom products in stock
increased threefold this year, to
around 20,000 outlets.
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Thanks!

7 bamewniting 10 @<ress my thanks
o one of your team for ihe technical
help he gave me an the 1elephone.
MNoi being of a very technical nature,

| needed help in updatng my
TomTom GO and downloading

a map of Australia...

...The TomTom emplovee | spoke
with was paticnt. sympathetic and
extremely helpful... So often,
technical support people do not
explain clearly and fully, and leave us
in the dark, only to feel frustrated. It
made a refreshing change o have
someone who did net rush the
situation, and took the care and time
t0 ensure that | was fully up-todate
before signing oftf...~

TomTom user

Talent development

TornTom invests a significant amount
of ume and effort in the training and
development of its staif. ltg
employee base has almost doubled
each year since 2003

AU IV T VL WV TR MR AT T
faunch of our products in Ireland, South
Africa and Tatwan. TomTom products are
now available in 25 countries worldwide.
In Europe they are available in 20
countries and we continue to expand as
new high-quality maps become available.
As TormTom started to build the PND
category in Europe, retailers know and
trust the TomTom brand and that is
illustrated by our leading market share
which is stable at around 53%. In North
America we grew our market share from
approximately 13% in 2005 to 20% in
2006. In Australia we built our presence
to the number one position in two years.

Customer support

We believe that TomTom products are the
best available in the market, and we back
this up with the best after-sales support -
perhaps one of the most valuable
resources we can offer to our customers.
Customer support is a real strategic asset
to our Company. This is how we find out
what our customers need or do not
understand. Synchronising what we hear
with our product development plans
delivers value beyond solving customer
problems, as it helps us identify areas
where we can further expand our
business. Additionally, by keeping
customer support in clear and direct
feedback with our product management
and marketing teams, we identify areas
where our preducts and services can
further improve.

Business review
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the rapid expansion of the TomTom user
base. Due to all the feedback we have
received we have been able to regularly
update our knowledge database with
frequently asked questions, a useful tool
consulted regularly by large numbers

of users. This has helped TomTom
customers learn tips and tricks from other
users, which at the same time leverages
our support function efficiently and
cost-effectively. TomTom now supports
users in 15 different languages across

25 countries.

Human resources

TomTom'’s human resources strategy is
based on developing scalable, transparent
and easy-to-use HR tocls and activities
that enable our business growth strategy,
help us retain key staff and allow us to
operate effectively and efficiently.

A significant part of our effort to drive

the growth of our business in 2006 was
the careful execution of our employee
growth strategy. During the year we grew
the number of employees from 435 to
818 people.

We strive to create and nurture & culture
where people can communicate openty,
where creativity can flourish and where
talent is rewarded fairly. We succeed in
encouraging balance and diversity

in our workforce: our male:female split
this year was 71%:29% and we
employed staff from 35 different
nationalities within the various TomTom
offices around the world.
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ror a long-term teading position for
navigation products and related
services because of the size of our
installed base, technology leadership,
distribution power and brand
recognition. TomTom will develop
into an integrated content, service
and technology business.

TomTom - a focused

technology company

The depth of our expertise in navigation
technolegy, gained over 15 years,

has given TomTom a competitive edge,
consistently positioning our products as
‘best in the market’. All core technologies
were and are developed in-house, from
the ground up. Ownership and control
over electronics, firmware, mapping

and nawigation algorithrms, user interface,
connectivity and real-time services allow
us to deliver a seamiess and integrated
user experience. Our relentless
commitment to delivering the most
innovative and easiest to use navigation
solutions is essential to our market and
technology leadership position.

Technology review

‘technologies

Technological developments will mean
navigation products will evolve from
static ‘find-your-destination’ devices into
connected and dynamic 'find-the-optimal
route-to-your-destination” and "time-
dependent travel information’ products
and services. TomTom is in an excellent
position for a long-term leading position in
navigation products and services because
of the size of its installed base, its
technelogy base, distribution power and
brand recognition. TomTom will develop
into an integrated content, service and
technology business. Today's buyers

will benefit from future improvemenis
and services.

NavCore navigation framework

The underlying technolegical layers for
navigation developed by TomTom use
advanced map comprassion tools and
intelligent routing algorithms. These aliow
the processing of enormous amounts of
road map data that can be displayed in a
manageable and simple way. NavCore,
our scalable navigation software
architecture, provides a transparent user
interface, giving the driver best-in-class
mapping and routing information tools.
NavCore enables simultanecus, real-time
connectivity of large numbers of users,
rich funcitonality and quality hardware
integration. TomTom’s NavCore navigation
software is today’s most widely deployed
satellite navigation platform in the world.

Product design and engineering

Our products are always designed for

the needs of the end-user, rather than the
operator or car manufacturer. We wark
with warld-class industrial designers to
deliver aesthetically pleasing products.
Our User Experience Group specifies and
validates end-user acceptance and ease of
use of all of our products. Our mechanical
and electronics designers develop to strict
cost and quality standards 10 ensure that
our products are leader in their class.

The end product is a reliable, easy-to-use
device that customers can seamlessly
connect to their cars, mobile phones,
computers and peripherals.
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Award-winning technology

Our technology has been awarded
many different accolades since we
first brought portable navigation to
the market, but we were parucularly
delighted to recenve recognition in
2006 fron reputable, independent
organisations such as "ADAC” in
Germany and "Consumentenbong”
in the Netherlands, These awards
vindicate our dedication and focus on
our end customers’ navigation needs.
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PLUS, is made available either wirelessly
via a Bluetooth™-enabled mobile phone
or via the internet with our in-house
developed software application TomTom
HOME. TomTom HOME simplifies the
process of managing, downloading and
storing TomTom PLUS content and
services. Users can pre-plan their route
from a PC or Mac and download content
such as maps to their TomTom device.
TomTom HOME also enables TomTom
GO 910 users to manage and download
music and photos.

WA A T

Content creation _

We believe that real-time and historical
travel-time information will provide

the building blocks to bring navigation
to its next logical level. The ability

to automatically, and without user
interference, route motansts along
the fastest possible route to their

. destination, with a high level of accuracy
- and reliability, will encourage a new
. way of using navigation devices.

" We have developed technology

that extracts real-time traffic information
by analysing mobile phone network
usage and cell-switching. This
revolutionary technology competes

with traditional ways of collecting traffic
information such as induction loops and
cameras but is completely scalable across
all territories where GSM networks are
established. It provides a much more
accurate, detailed and realtime picture
of actual travel tmes. The total
investments are a fraction of the current,
roadside equipment-based solutions.

Technology review

" Netherlands. This development will

see TomTom's in-house patented
technology convert anonymous,

raw GSM signalling data supplied

by Vodafone's network into accurate,
real-time information on the speed

and direction of cars travelling throughout
the road network. The technology has
been tested and proven on a regional
scale and this will be the world’s first
nationwide, commercial deployment.

19 TomTom Annual Report 2006




responsibility
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impact on the societies in which it
operates. This requires that business
decisions give due consideration to the
interests of TomTom’s stalieholders,
including sharcholders, employees,
suppliers, customers and local
communities. TomTom recognises

its responsibility for this impact.

As a starting point, TomTom is committed
to comply with all relevant national and
international legislation, including the
European Union's directives on waste
recycling (WEEE directive} and restricted
use of hazardous substances (RoHS
Directive). In addition, we are committed
to attracting and retaining the best people
to continue the success of cur Company.

Three case studies ifustrate our current
corporate social responsibility initiatives.

Human resources

At TomTom we employ a workforce of
more than 35 nationalities reflecting our
international ambitions and markets. Qur
diverse workforce is part of our success

in the international marketplace and is part
of cur unigue culture. This culure has an
open, dynamic character which stimulates
innovation. Amongst other activities,

we facilitate language courses for all
nationalities. At the end of 2006 29%

of our employees were female and 71 %
were male. The average age of our
employees is 33, which has helped foster
a young and informal culture. Open-plan
office architecture in our offices supports
and illustrates the open and dynamic
character of TomTom. This architecture

is replicated in all countries.

Corporate social responsibility

Ltnirielinent QF U eImployecs, ds

they are the driving force behind our

technology, innovation and growth. We

strive to employ capable and energetic
people who receive training and coaching
to maxinise their full potential. Employees

attend training during office hours. In 2006

training and development was focused

on four piflars:

— training on the job. TomTom
employees get responsible and
accountable jobs in order to accelerate
the growth of the emplovyee.

— training in generally needed skills.
Certain skills are required for the
majority of our roles; hence we provide
courses to develop these skills.

— tailor-made programmes: For some
departrments tailor-made programmes
are defined. For instance, the
development department defined
together with a supplier a JAVA
training programlmme,

— management development.

To ensure the organisational
developrment and maintenancs of

our corporate culture, a managerment
development programme was
launched. All three levels of
management either attended in 2006
or will be attending a management
development programme in 2007 and
beyond to align all management layers.

TomTom is further improving its
development programmes and launched
a new personal appraisal programme for
all employees at the beginning of 2007,

In the Netherlands, the newly developed
Sounding Board functions as a VWorks
Council. The Sounding Board was
consulted seven times by management
in 2006. Works Council members will

be elected before summer 2007.

TomTom has developed and implemented
its own Code of Conduct for its staff
which explains how our employees must
carry out their work in compliance with
ethical and legal standards.
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TomTom improves road safety
Indepencent research by Dutch
research instituie TRO shows that
TemTom satellite navigation sysiems
have a positive influence on road
safety. The study was commissionad
by Aon, Athlon Car Lease, Delta
Lloyci and TormTom.

Customer letter

" TemTom had told us 1o take the
next exit and we could see fon the
screen) that the bend was very sharp
as it doubled back on itself. There

15 16 way | would have slowad down
asmuchas|did...

As we came around the hend there
was a flood of water on the road
which we went straight nte, BANG
the car went straight inio the
concrete wall..,

. Helt I had o wnte 10 say thank you
for saving our lives. 'm convinced
thatif it had not been for TomTom
then we would have hit the concreie
wall at about BOmph rather than the
20mph we did hititat..”

TomTom user

oy
Satellite navigation systems have

a positive influence on road safety,
concludes research carried out by
independent research institute TNO,
jointly commissioned by TomTom, Delta
Lloyd {part of Aviva Pic), Aon and Athlon
Car Lease. The research shows that road
safety improves through a reduction

of kilometres driven, enhanced driving
manners and through more control and
less workload for the drivers.

Fewer kilometres are driven,

tess fuel is consumed

The research proved that the number of
kilometres driven when using a TomTom
satellite navigation solution is reduced
by 16%. Time spent travelling is reduced
by 18%. Because fewer kilometres

are driven, petrol is saved which is
beneficial for both the car driver and

the environment, In addition, the research
proves that drivers who do not have
satellite navigation make 12% more
damage claims than those who do have
satellite navigation.

Improved driving manners and
performance

Better driving manners, for example
through fewer stops and fewer wrns
were identified when a satellite navigation
system was used. Additionally, drivers
never lost their way and driving
instructors, who joined the test drivers in
the research, cbserved fewer occasions
of inappropriate driving behaviour.

More alert and less stressed behind
the wheel

The research showed that satellite
navigation solutions increase the
alertness of drivers and provide them
with an improved attention span, whilst
also reducing stress. About 78% of users
have the feeling that they have everything
under ¢ontrol when using a TomTom
satellite navigation solution. They are
more alert behind the wheel and mare
conscious of traffic behind them. The
research showed that the objective
workload measure {the Peripheral
Detection Task) was 20% less.

Based on these conclusions, TomTom
hopes that the use of TomTom satellite
navigation systems will alsc contribute to
a reduction of CO? emissions, pollution
and traffic congestion.

Corporate social responsibility
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and assembly of our products to a limited
number of suppliers. TomTom recognises
the Company’s responsibilities for the
labour, human rights and environmental
practices within the supply chain and that
it has a significant rcle to play in the
management of its supply chain.

As we are committed to ensuring that
our supphers adopt acceptable labour,
hurnan rights and environmental
standards, TomTom developed an Ethical
Trading Code of Practice in August 2006.
The standards in the Code relate to a
healthy and safe working environment,
compliance with all local labour laws, child
labour, forced labour, working hours,
payment and disciplinary practices. The
Code defers to local laws regarding the
handling and disposal of any hazardous
substances and waste products. In centain
instances where local laws are not
deemed sufficient, TomTom and its
suppliers will work together to implement
suitable international standards.

The Code is at the heart of TomTom’s
procurement process and we require
our suppliers to explicitly acknowledge
and adhere 1o its principles. We consider
direct suppliers to TomTom responsible
for downstream links in the supply chain.
However, direct suppliers have agreed
that TomTom can audit afl links in the
supply chain.

Our two main suppliers, covering more
than 90% of TomTom's supply chain,
have signed the Code and committed
themselves to working together with
us to address any areas of concern.
TJomTom will assist suppliers in complying
with the principles where possible but
reserves the right to terminate the
business relationship in case of non-
compliance. In 2006 we started to
monitor the implementation of and
compliance with the Code in the supply
chain through our internal auditors.
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ana supervisory board

The Management Board is responsible
for the day-to-day management of our
operations under the supervision of
the Supervisory Board.

The Management Board is required to
keep the Supervisory Board informed,
consult with the Supervisory Board on
important matters and submit certain
important decisions to the Supervisory
Board for its approval.

Harold Goddijn (46)
Me-ber of tne Management Board,
Crvef Executive Officer

Haro.o Cood:n is a Dutch nationa!
Haroa studed Economics at
Amsterdam University, and started
nis caree” with a venture capital fim
He founded Psion Netherands BV
™ 1988 as a jont venture with Ps:on
Plc, and co-fourded Tonr"om in 1891
wath 2eter-Frans Pauwels and Pieter
Geeler. He continued to lead Psion
Netherlands BY and made 1t a key
Europear distibuter for Psion. In
1998 he was appointed Managirg
Director of Psion Compuiers and
served on the Board of Psion Plc
frorr 1998 to 1999, He was
appainted Chief Executive Offrcer
of TorTon~ in 2001

Management Board
Haroid Godd |r (top, left)
Manira Whatt (ton, nghit)
Alexander Ribbin< {bottorm)

Managerment Board

Marina Wyatt {43}
Meamber of the Managemenrt Board,
Chief Financial Ofwcer

Marina Wyatiis a Bnosh nauongl
and a Cambridge Universty graduate,
Ma‘ina 's a Chartered Accounzant
and a Fellow of the Institlute of
Chartered Accountats in Engiand
and Waies. Her previcus experience
includes nine years with Arthur
Andersen in London and in the US
After this she became Corporate
Controlier of Ps'on Plc. Marina then
spent e'ght years niisted company
CFQ roles with Psion Plc and Colt
Telecommunications Ple. She was
formerly & nor-executive director

of Symbiar Ltd and of Blackwell
Publishing Ltd. Marina joined
TomTom ag Chief Fnancatl Officer
in February 2005,

Alexander Ribhink {42} .
Mamber of the Management Board,
Chief Operatng Officer

Alexander Ribbirk is a Dutch national.
Alexander graduated with a Masters
degree in Law from Amsterdam
University and then compietea an
MBA, at the Rosterdam Schoo of
Managerrent, Erasmrus Graduare
Schocl of Business Administrat-an.
He speni 11 years wath L lever,
working in conswrrer mar<eting and
general management, becoming
wice-president for brand development
for one of the company's largest
Duteh food subsidianas. Alexander
fater managed a key Eurgpean
busmess unit for Mars, Inc. He,
joned TornTom 10 lead our marketing
activites in November 2003 and

was appointed Chisf Operating
Off'cer ir 2004.
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Andrew Browne {51}
Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Andrew Browne is an Irish national.
Me was first appoinied to the
Supervisory Board in May 2005,

and his current tamm runs untit

2009. Andrew earned a Masters in
Business Administration from Trinity
College in Dublm. He is a Certified
Public Accountant and is a member
aof the Instituie of Centified Public
Agcountants in the Republic

of Ireland. From 1985 t¢ 1995 he
worked for Advanced Micro Devices
in Califorma and in Asia, leading
AMD’s firancial sales and marketing
operations worldwide. He also
served ag Chief Financial Ofticer
and Deputy Chief- Executive Officer
of Intelsat; the Internaticnal
Telecommuinications Satellite.
organisation based in Washington DC
from 1985 10 1998. Since 1988,
Andrew has served as Vica President,
Chief Financial Officer and Director of
New Skies Sateliites BV, Heisalso a
member of the Board

of the Intermational Space University
in Strasbourg, France.

Doug Dunn (62)
Deputy Chairman of the
Supenisory Board

Doug Dunn is a British national,

He was first appeinied to the
Supervisary Board in May 2005,
and his curent term runs urtil 2007.
Boug holds a Higher National
Qualfication in Electrical and
Electronic Engineering from the
College of Advanced Technology,

~ Sheffield University. On retirament

in December 2004, he had for five
years been Chief Executive Officer
and President of ASML Holding NV.
Prior to this he was a member

of the Board of Management of
Royal Philips Electronics NV and
Chief Executive Officer of the
Consumer Electronics division
(1926-1999) and Chief Executive
Officer of the Semiconductor Division
(1993-1296!. Before joining Philips,

. Doug was Managing Director of the

Semiconductor and Components
division of General Blectric Company
Pic frem 1980 to 1993. For 11

years prior to this he held several
engineering and senior managament
positions in the United States and
the United Kingdom with Matorola

-, Semiconductors, Doug currently -

serves as chairman of the Board

of Directors of ARM Heldings Plc.
Doug s also a non-executive director
of LG, Philips L.CD, Soitec SA, ST
Microelectronics NV and Optcal
Metrology Innovations.

P
Supervisory Board
Andrew Browne (top, left)
Doug Dunn {tep, right)
Guy Demuynck bottom)

Supervisory Board

Luy Demuynck (o)
Mermber of the Supervisory Board

Guy Demuynck is a Belgian naticnal
He was first appointed to the
Supervisory Board in May 2005, and
his current ferm runs urtil 2008 Guy
eamed his Masters degrees in
Applied Ecenomics and Marketing
and Distribution from the Universities
of Antwerp and Ghent, respactively.
He bagan his career with Royal
Philips Electronics NV, where he
worked for 26 years in vanous
commercial and marketing roles in
Europe, the United States ana East
Asia, cuiminating in his appointment
as Chief Executive Officer of Philips
Consumer Electronies division i
2000. As Chief Executive Officer of
Philips Consumer Electronics, e also

-gerved as a rmember of the Philips

Group Management Committes
until Decernber 2002. Guy is aiso &
former member of the Board of
Management of Royal KPN NV,

with responsibility for KPN's mobile
division and he served on the
Supervisory Beard of E-Plus
Mobilfunk Geschafisfishrungs GmbH.
In June 2806, Guy was appointed as

Chief Exetutive Officer of Kroymans

Corporation B, a company active in
the automotive industry.
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The Supervisory Board currently consists of Andrew
Browne, Doug Dunn and Guy Demuynck who are listed
in the section “Management Board and Supervisory
Board” of this annual report.

Summary of activities

The Supervisory Board held six meetings with the
Management Board during 2006 (see below). Among
the items discussed in these meetings were operational,
financial, fegat, governance and strategic matters.

The Supervisory Beard discussed and agreed the
financial results and the quarterly results with the related
press releases prior 1o publication. The focus for the

July 2006 meeting was on educational training for

the Supervisory Board.

No Supervisory Board members were frequently
absent from the meetings. The attendance of the 2006
Supervisory Board meetings is reflected in the
following table.

Pate Andrew Doug Guy

\ Browne Dunti Dernuynick
13 February . - .

24 April . - .

4 July . . .

20 July . . .

25 QOctober . . .

13 December . . .

In addition to the scheduled meetings, the Supervisory
Board had regular contact, including conference calls,
with the Management Board and was informed and
consulted by the Management Board on the course

of the business and on the acquisition of Applied
Generics Ltd.

Meetings without the Management Board being present
included meetings with the external auditor, meetings

to review the compaosition, functioning and individual
performance of the Management Board and meetings
to discuss the compaosition, functioning and individual
performance of the Supervisory Board.

Independence

The Supervisory Board confirmns that alt Supervisory
Board members are independent within the
meaning of provision 111.2.2 of the Dutch Corporate
Governance Code.

Supervisory Board report

Committees

As the Supervisory Board consisted of fewer than five
members, it was not obliged to and did not veluntarily
appoint from among its members an Audit Committee,
a Remuneration Committee and a Selection and
Appointment Commitiee. Therefore, in accordance with
the Dutch Corporate Governance Code, the Supervisory
Board assumes the responsibilities normally perforrmed
by these Committees.

Remuneration of the Supervisory Board

The aggregate remuneration of the Supervisory Board
members in 2006 amounted to €100,000. The individual
remuneration of the members of the Supervisory Board
is shown in the notes to our financial statements which
are included in this annual report.

Remuneration Report

Application in 2006

On the basis of a benchmark of salaries, performed by
an independent consultancy agency in February 2006,
the Supervisory Board agreed to continue the same
policy as in 2005 with respect to the base safaries and
bonuses of Management Board members.

The Supervisory Board drew up a Remuneration Policy
for the Management Board which was approved at the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in April 2006.

In 2006, the remuneration of the Management
Board consisted of (i) fixed remuneration, (i} variable
remuneration and (i) long-term incentives

{stock options).

{i} Fixed remuneration

The fixed remuneration consists of a base salary,
which includes pension, 8% holiday allowance (except
to Ms. Watt), life and disahility insurance as well as
health insurance. Base salaries are subject 10 the usual
statutory deductions.

Members of the Management Board are eligible

to participate in the Company's defined contnbution
pension plan. The Company’s contribution to the
pension of each member of the Management Board
is a rnaximum of 10% of base salary.
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{i) Variable remuneration

In addition to their fixed remuneration, members of

the Management Board are eligible to participate in

the management team bonus scheme, which is subject
to approval by the Supervisory Board and based on
performance criteria. For 2006, the bonus pool was
established at a percentage of profit before tax and

was consistent with the bonus pool for 2005.

(i) Long-term incentive

The members of the Management Board are eligible
to participate in the Company’s 2005 Share Option
Plan. Performance criteria were established by the
Supervisory Board for share options granted to
Management Board members during 2006.

For details of the remuneration of the Management
Board please refer to the notes 1o the financial
statements which are included in this annual report.

Employimeni contracts

Members of the Management Board have an
employment contract with the Company.

The contracts are entered into for an indefinite period
of time. However, the term of office of members of
the Management Board is four years, after which the
appointment can be renewed for another period of not
mnore than four years at a time. In case the employment
of a member of the Management Board is terminated by
or on the initiative of TomTom, then he shall be entitled
to a fixed amount of 50% of his annual base salary,
including holiday allowance, unless the employment is
terminated for cause within the meaning of the Articles
7:677 sub 1 and 7:678 of the Dutch Civit Code, in which
situation the relevant Management Board member is
not entitled to any severance. This amount will be due
in addition to the salary the Company has to pay to
members of the Management Board during the
agreed notice period of 12 months. A member of

the Management Board will not be entitled to the
severance if the employment is terminated by him

or on his initiative.

Supervisory Board repon

Qutlook 2007

On the basis of a benchmark of Management Board
salaries performed by an independent consultancy in
2006, the Supervisory Board proposes to continue the
current remuneration policy of variable remuneration,
fixed remuneration and long-term incentives. Itis the
intention of the Supervisory Board to perform an annual
benchmark of Management Board salarnies. Performance
criteria have been established for variable remuneration
and long-term incentive schemes which will be reviewed
and monitored on an ongoing basis by the Supervisory
Board. The performance criteria are based on financial
and operational targets.

The Supervisory Board is considering a possible
amendment to the long-term ingeritive component

of the remuneration policy. In the event that such an
amendment would result in a material change in the
remuneration policy, the amendment will be submitted
to the General Meeting of Shareholders for adoption.

Financial statements 2006

The consolidated annual financial statements of
TornTom NV for 2006, as presented by the Management
Board, have been audited by Deloitte Accountants B.V.
The Supervisory Board has approved these financial
statements for 2006 and all individual members of

the Supervisory Board (together with the members

of the Management Board) have signed the financial
statements for 2006.

The Supervisory Board recommends that the General
Meeting of Shareholders adopts both the Consolidated
and Company Annual Accounts for 2006. The Annual
Report for 2006 is available at the Company's offices
on request.

Upon approval of the Consolidated and the Company
Annual Accounts for 2006 and in accordance with
Article 2:394 and Article 2:395 of the Dutch Civil Code,
the Management Board will file the Consolidated and
Company Annual Accounts for 2006 with the Chamber
of Commerce.
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Audit

The Supervisory Board assumes the roles and
responsibilities of an audit committee, It was not
required to establish a separate audit committee
pursuant to the Dutch Corporate Governance Code
(best practice provision [11.5) as the number of
Supervisory Board members did not exceed four
during any given period of the 2006 financial year.

Allmembers of the Supervisory Board are independent
non-executive Directors of the Company. The Dutch
Corporate Governance Code requires the Supervisory
Board to be satisfied that at least one member is a
financial expert. The Supervisory Board considers that
there is a sufficient breadth of financial expertise across
the Supervisory Board that, collectively, the members
have the requisite skills and attributes to enable themn
to properly discharge their responsibilities relating to
the business of an audit committee.

The Supervisory Board assisted the Company in
meeting its responsibilities in respect of the
following areas:

— the integrity of annual and quarterly financial reporting
as presented under IFRS together with related press
releases;

— the maintenance of an effective system of internal
control and risk management relating to strategic,
financial, operational and compliance risks;

— the role and functioning of the internal audit
department;

— relations with the external auditor, including the scope
of their plans, assessment of their independence,
approvat of their remuneration and their
reappointment or dismissal;

— compliance with the recommendations and
observations of the internal and external auditors; and

— review of the policies for managing cash, foreign
exchange risk and tax planning.

Superviscry Board report

Financial reporting

The Supervisory Board reviewed the quarterly financial
results and full-year financial statements prior to their
release. Attention was paid to critical accounting policies,
clanty of disclosure, compliance with accounting
standards, stock exchange requirements of Euronext
Amsterdam and other corporate governance, legal and
regulatory requirements.

Risk Management and Internal Audit

The Company monitors its internal controls through a
systematic programme of risk analysis, internal audits
and control self-assessments. The Company has an
independent Risk Management and Internal Audit
department. The department is the responsibility of the
Chief internal Auditor who reparts functionally to the
Supervisory Board and administratively to the Chief
Financial Officer. During 2006, quarterly reporting was
performed for the Supervisory Board at four out of the
six Supervisory Board meetings. In order to facilitate free
and open discussions during the course of the year, the
Chief internal Auditor met separately with the Chairman
of the Supervisory Board without the Management
Board being present.

The independence and objectivity of Internal Audit is
maintained primarily through the following principles:

— the Supervisory Board maintains the relationship with
Internal Audit. Internal Audit has direct access to the
Superviscry Board. The charter describing the
purpose, authority and responsibility of the Internal
Audit function is approved by the Supervisory Board;
and

— Internal Audit provides assurance on internal controls
and advises on business risks. The Management
Board is accountable for managing risks associated
with the Company’s activities and for maintaining
appropriate internat control systems.

During the vear, the Internal Audit Plan was
developed and approved by the Supervisory Board.
The Management Board, senior management and
the external auditor provided input into the Plan.
The Plan will be updated annually and allows
flexibility for changing business needs.
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External audit

The Supervisory Board agrees the appointment and
compensation of the external auditor subject, in each
case, 1o the approval of the Company's shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. Deloitte
Accountants BV has acted as external auditor for the
Company since 2004. They have expressed their
willingness to continue in office. Resolutions proposing
their reappointment and authorising the Board 1o set
their remuneration will be submitted to the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

During the financial year 2006 the Supervisory Board
met three times with the external auditor together with
the Management Board. Prior to the meeting held in
February 2006, the Supervisory Board met separately
with the external auditor. The purpose of the meeting
without the Managenment Board was to facilitate free
and open discussions between the Supervisory Board
members and the external auditor.

The Supervisory Board reviewed the independence of
the external auditor, Deloitte Accountants BV, taking
into account audit and non-audit services provided to the
Company and its subsidiaries. Below is a summary of
services performed by Deloitte Accountants B.V. and
affiliated service lines.

ype of senace 2006 2005

€ in thousands)
Statutory audit services 317 31% 170 52%
Cther audit services 83 8% 50 15%
Tax senvices 635 61% 105 32%
Total 1,035 325
Supervisory Board
Amsterdam
The Netherlands

22 rebruary 2007

Supenvisory Board report
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The Dutch Corporate Governance Code

In accordance with the Dutch Order of Council of

23 December 2004 we apply all of the relevant provisions
of the Dutch Corporate Governance Code, with the
following dewvtations which are set out below together with
the reasons for those devigtions:

— for share options issued to Management Board
members after 31 December 2005, we comply with
best practice provisions 11.2.1 and 11.2.2 as all options
granted to members of the Management Board during
2006 are subject to performance criteria. However, for
share options granted to Management Board members
prior to 31 December 2005 we partly deviate from best
practice provisions il.2.1 and 11.2.2. Best practice
provision 11.2.1 provides that options to acquire shares
are a condttional remuneration compoenent, and
become unconditional anly when the Management
Board members have fulfiled predetermined
performance criteria after a period of at least three
years from the grant date. Best practice provision 11.2.2
provides that, if a company, notwithstanding best
practice provision I1.2.1, grants unconditional options
to Management Board members, it shall apply '
performance criteria when doing so. Options granted
to Management Board members under the 2005 Share
Option plan prior t0 31 December 2005 vest
unconditionally after a three-year period. No
predetermined performance criteria were established
for these share gptions as the industry for personal
navigation was at a relatively nascent stage and we
believed that setting credible {predetermined}
performance criteria was not practical at that time;

Corporate Governance

— we do not apply best practice provision {1.2.7, which

provides that the maximum remuneration in the event
of involuntary termination may not exceed the directors’
annual fixed rernuneration, In the event of termination
of employment initiated by the Company, the
respective Management Board member will be entitled
to compensation equal to 18 months of his fixed annual
remuneration. This consists of a 12-month notice
period and a fixed amount of 50% of annual base

salary, including holiday allowance. Management Board
members’ employment contracts, including the above
terms and conditions, were entered into prior to

the date of the Initial Public Offering of the Company

in 2005; and

— best practice provision IV.1.1 provides that a company’s

General Meeting of Shareholders may pass a resolution
to set aside the binding nature of a nomination for the
appointment of a member of the Management Board
or the Supervisory Board by an absolute majority of the
votes representing at least one-third of issued share
capital. Qur Articles of Association provide that a binding
nomination for the appointrment of members of our
Management Board or of our Supervisory Board may
only be set aside by a resolution of our General Meeting
of Shareholders passed with a two-thirds majority
representing more than 50% of our issued share
capital. We deviate from this best practice provision
because we believe that maintaining continuity in our
Managerment Board and Supervisory Board is critrcal

for delivering longrterm shareholder value. We would
like to protect our stakeholders against a sudden
change in management by maintaining the qualified
majority and voting guorum requirement, whichis
allowed under Dutch lawv.

28 TormTom Annual Report 2006




Continued

Management Board

General

The members of the Management Board have collective
powers and responsibilities. They are responsible for the
day-to-day management of our operations under the
supenvision of the Supervisory Board.

Composition and appointment

The Articles of Association provide that the number of
members of the Management Board will be determined
by the Supervisory Board and will consist of at least three
members: a Chief Executive Officer, a Chief Financial
Officer and a Chief Operating Officer. Each member of the
Managesment Board is appointed for a maximum of four
years, which can be renewed for another period of not
more than four years at a time. A resolution of the General
Meeting of Shareholders to suspend or dismiss members
of the Management Board requires a majority of at least
tworthirds of the votes cast representing more than 50%
of our issued share capital.

The General Meeting of Shareholders appoints the
members of the Management Board, subject to the right
of the Supervisory Board to make a binding nomination.
The General Meeting of Shareholders may at all times, by
a resolution passed with a majority of at least two-thirds of
the votes cast representing more than 50% of our issued
share capital, resolve that the nomination submitted by the
Supervisory Board is not binding. In such cases the General
Meeting of Shareholders may appoint a member of the
Management Board in contravention of the Supervisory
Board's nomination by a resolution passed with a majority
of at least two-thirds of the votes cast representing more
than 50% of cur issued share capital. If the Supervisory
Board fails to use its right to submit a binding nomination,
the General Meeting of Shareholders may appoint
members of the Management Board with a majority of at
least two-thirds of the votes cast representing more than
50% of our issued share capital.

Membars of the Management Board
Harold Goddijn

Chief Executive Officer

Marina Wyatt

Chief Financial Officer

Alexander Ribbink

Chief Operating Officer

Corporate Govemance

Further details about the members of the Managerment
Board and their biographies can be found in the
Management Board and Supervisory Board section.

Senior management

Our Management Board is supported by our Senior
Management Team:

Corinne Gaddijn-Vigreux

Chief Commercial Officer

Peter-Frans Pauwels

Chief Technical Officer

Pieter Geelen

Director of Software Development

Mark Gretton

Development Director

Harry van de Kraats

Hurnan Resources and Organisation Director

Remuneration

The Supervisory Board establishes the remuneration of the
individual members of the Management Board, in
accordance with the Management Board remuneration
policy as adopted by the General Meeting of Shareholders.
The Supervisory Board presents to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for approval any scheme providing for the
remuneration of the members of the Management Board
in the form of shares or options.

For further information about the remuneration of the
members of the Management Board, see the notes
included in the financial statements of TomTom NV in this
annual report.
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Contlict of interast

Members of the Management Board must report and
provide all relevant information regarding any conflict of
interest or potential conflict of interest to the Chairman of
the Supervisory Board. The Supervisory Board shall decide,
without the relevant member of the Management Board
being present, whether there is a conflict of interest.

During the year 20086, the following potential
conflicts of interest were notified to the Chairman
of the Supervisory Board by the relevant members
of the Management Board:

— the intended sale and transfer of 3,000,000 sharesin
the capital of the Company by Tradewind Investment
N.V, the holding company held for the benefit of
Mr. Goddijn and his family, as part of a secondary
offering by our founding shareholders and our
Chief Operating Officer; and

— the intended sale and transfer of 2,000,026 shares
in the capital of the Company upon exercise of an
equal number of share options by Mr. Ribbink, our
Chief Operating Officer, as part of the
aforementioned transaction.

Under the shareholders’ agreement between our founding
shareholders, the persons controlling the shareholdings of
such founding shareholders and the Company, the four
founding shareholders and the Company are required to
consult with each other and discuss in good faith the
intended transfer of sharas for a period of three maonths.
Because two of the Management Board members
(mentioned above) intended to sell and transfer the shares
prior ta expiration of such a three-month period, consent by
the Company 10 such shortening was required. Since this
constituted a formal conflict of interest, the decision to
grant consent under the shareholders’ agreement was
subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board.

After diligent consideration and after having taken external
expert legal and financial advice, the Supervisory Board
resolved, without the two aforementicned Management
Board members being present, to grant its approval as to
the timing of the intended transactions and concluded that
the timing of the transactions was not contrary to the best
interests of the Company and its stakeholders.

Taking into account the procedure followed in these
conflict of interest matters, we believe that we have
complied with relevant best practice provisions of Dutch
Corporate Governance.

Corporate Governance

Supervisory Board

General

The Supenvisory Board is responsible for supervising

the conduct of the Management Board and the general
course of our business, as well as for providing advice

to the Management Board. In performing its duties,

the Supervisory Board is required to act in the interests

of the business as & whole. The Articles of Association
require certain decisions of the Management Board to

be approved by the Supervisory Board. These decisions
include the issue of shares or the granting of rights to
subscribe for shares and the exclusion of pre-emptive
rights to the extent that these rights are vested in the
Management Board, proposals to amend the Articles of
Association, proposals to merge or demerge, proposals to
dissolve the Company and proposals for capital reductions.

Composition and appointment

The Articles of Association provide that the number of
members of the Supervisory Board will be at least three.
Each member of the Supervisory Board is appointed for a
maximum of four years. This appointment can be renewed
for two additional periods of not more than four years at a
time. The members of the Supenvisory Board retire
periodically in accordance wath a rotation schedule.

The Supenvisory Board appoints a Chairmnan and a Deputy
Chairman from amongst its members. A resolution of the
General Meeting of Shareholders to suspend or dismiss
members of the Supervisory Board requires & majority

of at least two-thirds of the votes cast representing more
than 50% of our issued share capital.

The General Mesting of Shareholders appoints the
members of the Supervisory Board, subject o the right of
the Supervisory Board to make a binding nomination. The
General Meeting of Sharehclders may at all tirmes, by a
resolution passed with a majority of at least two-thirds of
the votes cast representing more than 50% of our issued
share capital, resolve that the nomination submitted by the
Supervisory Board is not binding. In such case, the General
Meeting of Shareholders may appoint a member of the
Supervisory Board in contravention of the Supervisory
Board's nomination by a resolution passed with a majority
of at least two-thirds of the votes cast representing more
than 50% of our issued share capital.

Members of the Supervisory Board
Andrew Browne

Chairman

Doug Dunn

Deputy Chairman

Guy Demuynck

Further details about the members of the Supervisory

Board and their biographies can be found in the
Management Board and Supervisory Board section.
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Remuneration

The remuneration of the members of the Supervisory
Board is determined by the General Meeting of
Shareholders. Members of the Supervisory Board are
not authorised to receive any payments under our
pension scheme, bonus scheme or option plans.

For detailed information about the individual remuneration
of members of the Supervisory Board see the notes to
the financial statements of TomTorn NV included in this
annual report.

Rotation schedule
On 13 February 2006, the Supervisory Board adopted the
following rotation schedule:

ame Date appointed End ot Date off
first ©erm possible;

reapoointment

Doug Dunn 13 May 2005 AGM 2007 AGM 2007
Guy Dermuynck 13 May 2005 AGM 2008 AGM 2008
Andrew Browne 13 May 2005 AGM 2009 AGM 2009

Conflict of interest

Members of the Supervisory Board must report and
provide all relevant information regarding any potential
conflict of interest to the Chairman of the Supervisory
Board or, in case of a conflict of interest of the Chairman
of the Supervisory Board, to the Deputy Chairman of the
Supervisory Board. The Supervisory Board shall decide,
without the relevant member of the Supenvisory Board
being present, whether a conflict of interest exists.

Shares and shareholders’ rights

Issue of ordinary shares and pre-emptive rights

The Company may issue ordinary shares, or grant

rights to subscribe for ordinary shares, pursuant to

a resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders upon
proposal of the Management Board, subject to the prior
approval of the Supervisory Board.

If so designated by the General Meeting of Shareholders
or our Articles of Association, we may issue ordinary
shares, or grant rights to subscribe for ordinary shares,
pursuant to a resolution of the Managemen: Board,
subject to the prior approval of the Supervisory Board.

No resclution of the General Meeting of Shareholders or
the Management Board is required for an issue of ordinary
shares pursuant to the exercise of a previously granted
right to subscribe for ordinary shares.

Corporate Governance

The Articles of Association grant the Management Board
the irrevocable authority to issue ordinary shares, or grant
rights to subscribe for ordinary shares, up to a maximum of
20% of our authorised share capital of ordinary shares, for
a period of two years ending on 13 May 2007. A resolution
extending this authority unitil 13 May 2009 was passed
during the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders held

in April 2006.

Dutch company law and our Articles of Assaciation in most
cases give shareholders pre-emptive rights to subscribe

on a pro fata basis for any issue of new shares. Exceptions
to these pre-emptive rights include the issue of shares (i}

to our employees, (i) in return for non-cash consideration,
or {iii} to persons exercising a previcusly granted right to
subscribe for shares. Holders of ordinary shares do not
have pre-emptive rights with respect to preference shares
to be issued and holders of preference shares do not have
pre-emptive rights with respect to ordinary shares.

A shareholder may exercise pre-emptive rights during a
period of two weeks from the date of the announcement
of the issue of shares. The Management Board, subject
to the prior approval of the Supervisory Board, and if so
designated by the General Meeting of Shareholders,

may restrict or exclude shareholder pre-emptive rights.

A resolution by the General Meeting of Shareholders 10
authorise the Management Board to exclude or restrict
pre-emptive rights requires a majority of at least two-thirds
of the votes cast, if less than 50% of our issued share
capital is present or represented at the General Meeting of
Shareholders. If the General Meeting of Shareholders has
not delegated this authority to the Management Board, the
General Meeting of Shareholders may itself vote to restrict
or exclude pre-emptive rights, but only upon a proposal of
the Management Board.

The Articles of Association grant the Managerment Board
the irrevocable authority to restrict or exclude pre-emptive
rights for a period of two years ending on 13 May 2007,
A resolution extending this authority until 13 May 2009
was passed during the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders held in April 2006.

General meetings of sharehicldars end voiing rights
The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders must be
held within six months of the end of each financial year.
An Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders

may be convened, whenever our interests so require,
by the Management Board or the Supervisory Board.
Shareholders representing alone or in aggregate at least
one-tenth of our issued and outstanding share capital
may, pursuant to the Dutch Civil Code and our Articles
of Association, request that a General Meeting of
Shareholders be convened. if such General Meeting of
Shareholders has not been convened within 14 days or
is not held within one month following such request, the
shareholders are authorised to call such General Meeting
of Shareholders themselves.
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The notice convening a General Meeting of Shareholders
must include an agenda indicating the items for discussion,
as well as any proposals for the agenda. Sharehoiders
holding at least 1% of our issued and outstanding share
capital or shares representing a value of at least €50 million
according to the Daily Official List may submit proposals for
the agenda. Provided we receive such proposals no later
than the 60" day before the General Meeting of
Shareholders, we will have the proposals included in the
notice we publish in a national newspaper distributed daily
in the Netherlands and also in the Daily Official List at least
15 days before the meeting.

The Management Board may determine a record date to
establish which shareholders are entitled to attend and
vote at the General Meeting of Shareholders. There ts no
attendance quorum.

Each of our ordinary shares and preference shares is
entitled to cne vote. Shareholders may vote by proxy. The
voting rights atiached to any of our shares heid by us are
suspended as long as they are held in treasury.

Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders are
adopted by a simple majority, except where Dutch law or
our Articles of Association provide for a special majority.
According to our Articles of Association the following
decisions of the General Meeting of Sharehclders require a
majority of at least two-thirds of the votes cast,
representing more than 50% of our issued share capital:

— a resolution to cancel a binding nomination for the
appointment of members of our Management Board
and Supervisory Board:

— aresolution to appoint members of the Management
Board or Supervisory Board in contravention of the fist
of nominees submitted by the Supervisory Board; and

- a resolution to dismiss or suspend members of the
Management Board or Supervisory Board.

[n addition, our Articles of Association require a majorty
of at least two-thirds of the issued capital if less than
50% of our issued share capital is represented for among
other matters:

— aresolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders
regarding restricting and excluding pre-emptive
rights or decisions to designate the Management
Board as the body authorised to exclude or restrict
pre-emptive rights;

— g resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders
to reduce our cutstanding share capital; and

— aresolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders
to have us merge or dermerge.

Corporate Governance

Preference shares as an anti-takeover measure
General

The Articles of Association provide for the possibility

of issuing preference shares to the Stichting Continuiteit
TomTom {the “Foundation”), established on 26 May 2005,
as an ant-takeover measure. The purpose of the
Foundation is to safeguard our interests and those of

our subsidiaries in such a way that these interests as well
as the interests of all those involved in the organisation, are
safeguarded, and that influences, which in contravention
with those interests could affect our continuity and/or
corporate identity, are fended off. We believe that

the issue of preference shares may have the effect of
preventing, discouraging or delaying an unschcited atternpt
to obtain (de facto) control and may help us to determine
our position in relation to a bidder and its plans, and to
seek alternatives. '

There are currently no preference sharés outstanding.

Compaosition of the Continuity Foundation

The Management Board of the Foundation consists of one
‘A Board member’ and two ‘B Board members’. The A
Board member is appointed by the Management Board,
frorm among the members of the Supervisory Board,
subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board. The B
Board members are appointed by the Board of the
Foundation.

In 20086, the members of the Management Beoard of the
Foundation were:

A Board member
B Board member
B Board member

G.J.M. Demuynck
M.W. den Boocgert
R.L. de Bakker

The Management Board of the Company and the
Management Board of the Foundation declare that they
are jointly of the opinion that the Foundation is independent
of the Company as required by the Euronext Rule Book,
Book Il of the stock market of Euronext Amsterdam.

Anti-takeover mechanism

We granted the Foundation a call option {the “Call Option”)
entiting it to acquire from us preference shares up toa
maximum of 50% of our total issued and outstanding
share capital (excluding issued and outstanding preference
shares). Under the terms of a separate agreement entered
into between us and the Foundation on 26 May 2005, we
have the right to require the Foundation to exercise the Call
Option if {if we expect a hostile takeover may be attempted
or {ii) in the opinion of the Management Board, a single
shareholder {or group of shareholders) holds a 'substantial
number” of our ordinary shares.

32 TomTom Annual Report 2006




Continued

Our Articles of Association grant the Management Board
the irrevocable authority to issue preference shares, or
grant rights to subscribe for preference shares, uptoa
maximum of 80% of the outstanding share capital of
ordinary shares, for a period of two years ending on 13
May 2007, subject to the approval of the Supervisory
Board. A resolution extending this authority until 13 May
2009 was passed during the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders held in April 2006.

A resolution of our Management Board to issue preference
shares, or to grant rights to subscribe for preference
shares, as a result of which the aggregate nominal value

of the issued preference shares will exceed 50% of the
outstanding capital of ordinary shares at the time of issue,
will at all times require the prior approval of the General
Meeting of Shareholders.

Upon the issue of preference shares, subscribers for
preference shares must pay at least 25% of the nominal
value of the preference shares. Each transfer of preference
shares requires the prior approval of the Management
Board and Supervisory Board.

No resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders

or the Management Board is required for an issue of
preference shares pursuant to the exercise of a previously
granted right to subscribe for preference shares {including
the right of the Foundation to acquire preference shares
pursuant to the Call Option).

The issue of preference shares is meant to be temporary.
Unless the preference shares have been issued by a vote
of the General Meeting of Shareholders, our Articles of
Association require that a General Meeting of Shareholders
be held within six maonths after the issue of preference
shares to consider their cancellation and redemption.

I the General Meeting of Shareholders does not resclve
to redeem and cancel the preference shares, a General
Meeting of Shareholders will be held every six months
thereafter for as long as preference shares remain
outstanding. The Management Board must provide a
Justification for such issue or grant of rights to subscribe
for preference shares {but not for the issue of preference
shares) at the General Meeting of Shareholders held within
four weeks after the date of issue or grant, unless such
explanation has been given at an earlier General Meeting
of Shareholders.

The issue of preference shares in this manner would cause

substantial dilution to the voting power of any sharehoider,
including a shareholder attempting to gain control of us.

Corporate Governance

Obligations of shareholders to disclose holdings

Under the Duich Financial Supervision Act {Wet op het
financiee! toazicht, any person who, directly or indirectly,
acquires or disposes of an interest in the capital and/or the
voting rights of a limited liability company incorporated
under Dutch law with an official listing on a stock exchange
within the European Economic Area, or a company
organised under the laws of a state that is not a member
of the European Union or party to the European Economic
Area, with an official isting on Eurolist by Euronext, must
give written notice of such acquisition or disposal if, as a
result of such acquisition or disposal, the percentage of
capital interest andfor voting rights held by such person
meets, exceeds or falls below one of the following
thresholds: 5%, 10%, 15%, 20%, 25%, 30%, 40%,

50%, 60%, 75% and 95% of a company’s issued and
outstanding share capital. Notification must be given to the
Dutch securtties regulator {Autorteit Financigle Markten)
(the "AFM") without delay.

Under the Financial Supervision Act, we are required to
inform the AFM immediately if our issued and outstanding
share capital or voting rights change by 1% or more since
our previous notification. Other changes in our capital

or voting rights need to be notified periodically. The AFM
will publish such notification in a public register. If a
person's capital or voting rights meets or passes the
abovementioned thresholds as a result of a change in

our issued and outstanding share capital or voting rights,
such person is required to make such netification
ultimately on the fourth trading day after the AFM has
published our notification as described above.

The AFM keeps a public register of all notifications made
pursuant to these disciosure obligations and publishes any
notification received by it.

As at 31 December 2006, we do not know of any person
or legal entity holding an interest in our ordinary share
capital andfor voting rights of more than 5% other than:

Pieter Geelen 14.24%
Peter-Frans Pauwels 14.24%
The Corinne Goddin-Vigraux 2005 Trust 14.24%
The Harold Goddijn 2005 Trust 14.24%

These percentages do not take into account the impact of
dilutton on our ordinary shares which we are not required
to report to the AFM.
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on Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board believes that the Company maintains an
adequate and effective system of risk management
and internal control which compilies with the Dutch
Code of Corporate Governance.

The Company views the careful management of risk

as a key management activity. The Board reviews the
effectivenass of the systems of internal control relative

to strategic, financial, cperational and compliance risks.
The systems of internal control are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate, the risk of fallure to achieve business
clyectives and can provide reascnable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstaterment or loss. The
Board discusses risk management and internal controls
with the Supervisory Board on a quarterly basis.

The Company embeds risk management into periodic
planning and internal control mechanisms. A top-down
approach Is followed where we identify the major risks
which could affect our business and the likelihcod of
problems arising.

The Group's systerns of internal controls are designed
and operated to mitigate the impact of risks affecting
the group. As such, the controls are subject 1o regular
review as the business changes.

Key features of the systems of internal control are:

— clearly defined lines of accountability and delegation
of authority, and comprehensive reporting and analysis
against approved budgets;

-— minimisation of operating risk by ensuring that the
appropriate infrastructure, contrals, systems and people
are in place throughout the businesses. Key policies
employed in managing operating risk invalve
segregation of duties, authorisation of transactions,
monitoring, financial and management reporting;

— a Code of Conduct and a Code of Ethics which are
available to staff on our intranet; the Code of Conduct
is also available on the TomTom website
www.tomtom.com); and

— centralised treasury operations to manage the
investment of cash balances and the exposure to
currency transaction risks. Treasury policies, risk imits
and monitoring procedures are approved annually by
the Supervisory Board.

Managernent Board's Report

on Risk Management and Internal Cantrol

Assurance on compliance with systems of internal

control and on their effectiveness is obtained through
management reviews, control self-assessment, internal
audits and testing of certain aspects of the internal financial
control systems by the external audtors during the course
of their audit.

Significant improvements in internal control during the
year included:

— the development and implementation of a new
rnedium- term Internal Audit Plan;

— the creation of a Quality Assurance function to manage
risks relating to the supply chain and products; and

— the implementation of a new Product Creation
Framework.

Internal control over financial reporting

Internal control over financial reporting is a process which
is managed by the Group Financial Controller and Chief
Financial Officer to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the rehability of management and financial reporting in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Controls over financial reporting include policies and
procedures that provide reasonable assurance that:

— commitments and expenditures are appropriately
authorised by the management and directors of
the Compariy;

— records are maintained accurately and fairly reflect
fransactions;

— the unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposal of the
Company’s assets that could have a material effect
on our financial statements would be detected on a
timely basis; and

— transactions are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

Due 1o inherent mitations, internal controls over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Risk
management and control systems provide reasonable
assurance that the financial reporting does not contain
any material inaccuracies. No material weaknesses were
identified during the year. These systems are deemed

to have functioned properly during the year under review,
and there is currently no indication they will not continue
to do so in the forthcoming period.

Amsterdam, 22 February 2007
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2006 was a very successful year for TomTom and this was
reflected in the financial performance of the Company.
Revenue increased by 89% to €1,364 million and net profit
by 55% to €222 million. The Company was strongly cash-
generative and cash balances increased during the year by
€260 million to €438 million. Net assets increased from
€306 million at the start of the year to €551 million at the
end of 2006. We delivered a 52% return on equity for the
year (measured as net profit over average equity for the
year) and diluted earnings per share increased by 51%
to€1.90.

[: —2006 2005 Change
rofit and loss (in € milions)

Revenue 1,364 720 89%
Gross profit 579 31 86%
% of sales 42% 43%

Operating profit 340 195 74%
% of sales 25% 27%

Net profit 22 143 66%
% of sales 16% 20%

EPS

{fully diluted — € per share) 1.90 1.26 51%

Revenue

The increase in revenue was driven by sales of portable
navigation devices (PNDs} which represented 93% of total
revenue for the year, up from 86% in 2005. Revenue from
PDA/smarphone solutions declined as expected as PNDs
continued to drive the growth in the personal navigation
market at the expense of PDAs and smartphanes. Other
revenue increased sharply from €33 million to €65 million
as we sold more accessories, maps and upgrades and
other content and services to our growing installed
customer base. The number of subscribers to TomTom
WORK's tracking and tracing solution increased from
8,000 at the end of 2005 to 14,000 at the end of 2006.

- 7006 005 Change
eveue in € milions)

PNDs 1,268 622 104%

PDA/smMartphone scolutions 31 65 52%

Other 65 33 97%

Total 1364 720 89%

Financial Review

The volume of PND units shipped in 2006 aimost tripled

to 4.7 million units, up from 1.7 million units in 2005. The
introduction of new models at lower price points increased
consurner acceptance of personal navigation and drove the
substantial unit and revenue growth. The average selling
price of PNDs decreased from €368 in 2005 to €270 n
2006 mainly due to the introduction of the new entry level
products at fower price points.

2006 2005 Change:
Linits sold fin 000s) |
PNDs 4,687 1,688 178%
PDA/smartphone soluticns 343 524 -35%
Total 5,030 2,212 127%

2006 2005 Change

werage seling price (in €)

PNDs 270 368 27%
PDA/smartphone solutions 91 125 27%

The proportion of revenue generated from outside

Europe increased from 7% to 10%. North American
revenues increased from 6% of total revenue in 2005 to
8% in 2006 which, in absolute terms, equated to growth
from €42 million in 2005 to €106 millien in 2006. Revenue
generated in the first full year of sales in Australia increased
more than fourfold to €31 million in 2006 (2005: €7 million)
and represented 2% of revenue in 2006.

2006 Revenue by region
3
2 =~
< \
/ M
7
1 Europe 9% \J
2 North America 8%
3 Australia 2% 1
2005 Revenue by region
3
/%/s-\
1 Europe 3% \n /
2 North America 6%
3 Australia 1% 1
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Gross profit

The gross profit in 2006 increased to0 €579 million,

an increase of 86% over 2005 (2005: €311 million).
Despite the 27% reduction in the average selling price

for PNDs the gross profit margin continued to be strong
at 42%, only one percentage point lower than in 2005
(2005: 43%). Effective cost engineering on the new GO
and ONE devices and continued reductions in the costs of
components delivered substantial cost savings in our bifls
of material and contributed to the strength of our gross
margin. On average the US dollar rate weakened by 0.5%
against the euro year on year and had a negligible impact
on the gross margin.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses consist of research and
development costs, marketing expenditures, selling,
general and administrative expenses and stock
compensation expenses. Operating expenses {excluding
stock compensation expenses) iIncreased as a percentage
of revenue to 15.9% in 2006 from 15.3% in 2005. In
absolute terms operating expenses (excluding stock
compensation expenses) increased by €107 million, from
€110 miflion in 2005 to €217 million in 2006. Most of the
increase resulted from additional marketing and personne!
expenses to support the growth of the business.

& A 2006 % revenue 7005 % revenue
) € rrions)

Research and development 363 27% B9 1.2%
Marketing 100.8 7.4% 63.6 8.8%
Selling, general and

administrative 80.0 5.9% 38.0 53%
Total operating expenses ~ 217.1 15.9% 1105 15.3%

Research and development costs include the payroll
expenses of our research and development teams,
thirdparty software costs, patent creation costs and the
depreciation of research and development-related tangible
fixed assets and amortisation of acquired technologies.
The costs of thirdparty manufacturing design activities
are also included within research and development
expenditures. We now have research and development
teams in Amsterdam, London, Taipei, Leipzig, Berlin and
Edinburgh. Research and development costs increased
more than fourfold from €8.9 million in 2005 to €36.3
million in 2006. The majcrity of the increase was the result
of the increase in the numbers of development staff and
higher amortisation and depreciation expenses, which
grew from €2.2 million in 2005 to €15.5 miliion in 2006.
The increased amortisation and depreciation charges were
mainly the result of the fullyear impact of the acquired
technologies purchased from Datafactory and Applied
Generics. As a percentage of revenue research and
development expenses increased to 2.7 %, up from 1.2%
in 2005.

Financial Review

We invested €101 million in advertising and marketing
expenditure in 2006 (2005: €64 million). This represented
7.4% of revenue (2005 8.8%) and an increase of €37
million over 2005. We were able to achieve leverage in
these costs as a percentage cf revenue while consolidating
our European market leadership position and at the same
time making good progress in building our market position
in North America.

Selling, general and administrative expenses include
personnel expenses for our selling and administrative staff,
office expenses and other general expenses. SG&A costs
increased to €80 million in 2006, an increase of 111%
compared to 2005. As a percentage of revenue SG&A
expenses increased slightly from 5.3% in 2005 10 5.9%

in 2006. The key driver was the increase in sales staft

and general and administrative staff, together with higher
fees for professional services, most importantly for iegal
services in connection with |P litigation matters.

Qur head count {excluding temporary employees) almost
doubted to 818 at the end of 2006 from 435 at the end
of 2005.

Stock compensation charges

This expense is a non-cash accounting charge required by
IFRS 2 " Share-hased Payments”, and it relates to the grant
of share options. This charge is calculated under the
reguirements of the IFRS and recognised evenly over the
vesting period of the share options. In 2006 we recognised
a charge of €21 million (2005: €5 million) of which €2.5
million was related to newv share options granted in 2006.

Financial income and expenses

We recorded a net charge of €25 mitlion in 2008,
compared to a net gain of €15 million in 2005. The
reversed trend in the US dollar-euro exchange rate in

2006 compared to 2005 resulted in declining values of

our US dollar hedge cover which had a negative effect

on our financial income and expense line. Exchange rate
results switched from a gain of €12.3 million in 2005 to

a loss of €32.3 million in 2006. This loss arose mainly from
foreign exchange contracts to purchase US dollars in order
to pay our most significant contract manufacturers. We
revalue all forward contracts 1o market value at the end of
each period whether or not they have matured, as well as
cash and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies. The loss therefore consisted of both realised
and unreslised losses. Net interest income increased 10
€7 6 million, up from €2.4 millien in 2005.
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Taxation

The total income tax charge in all the jurisdictions in which
we opérate increased to €93 million in 2006 from €67
million in 2005. This increase was primarity the result of
higher profits mitigated by a decrease in the overall
effective tax rate from 31.8% in 2005 to 29.6% this year.
The decrease of the effective tax rate was mainly driven
by the lower Dutch statutory income tax rate in 2006.

Net profit
The net profit increased by €79 million to €222 million
in 2006 from €143 miltion in 2005.

Liquidity and capital resources

The strong operating profit together with tight
management of working capital helped us to generate
€292 million of cash from operating activities. Investing
activities increased compared with 2005 as we acquired
new technology to support our development activities.
Overall our cash balances increased by €260 million

10 €438 million.

2006 2005]
Cash flow in € miflions)
Net cash flow from operating activities 295 430
Cash flow used in nvestng activities 285 214
Cash flow from financing activities 1.1 1165
Net increase in cash and cash eguivalents 264.1 138.1
Effect of exchange rate changes -4.6 0.0
Cash and cash equivalents
at end of period 437.8 178.4

2006 2005
Balance sheet (in € millions)
Non-current assets 59.2 223
Current assets 843.8 4413
Total assets 903.0 463.6
Capital and reserves 550.8 306.3
Provisions 438 210
Nerrcurrent hiabilities 13 1.1
Current hiabilities 307.1 135.2
Total equity and liabilities 903.0 463.6

The balance sheet strengthened considerably in the year.
Net assets increased by €244 million to €551 million at the
end of 2006, mainly driven by the net profit of €222 miilion
and by tight working capital management. As shown in our
cash flow statement working capital decreased by €10
million in 2006 despite the 89% growth in revenue.

Financial Review

Treasury policy

TomTorm's treasury function manages the working
capital cash balances, investment of excess cash and
the risk resulting from operational transactions in non-
functional currencies.

Excess cash is invested under the assumption that it

can be made available within a reasonable period for the
implementation of strategic decisions. Investments are
selected to give an expected return relative to market rate
returns for instruments with a similar term and risk profile.
All investments are made with parties that have at least
an AA- credit risk rating by an acknowledged credit

rating agency.

Risks for TomTom relating to changes in currency
exchange rates regarding transactions in non-functional
currency are managed. The main goal is to make the cost
of working with foreign currencies more predictable and
to reduce the overall currency risk faced by TomTom.
Reduction of the cost of foreign currencies by achieving
better exchange rates than market averages or market
expectations is not in scope of the treasury policy. The
currency risks are managed with simple instruments
such as forward and plain option contracts for both the
procurement and the sale side. The primary exposure is
our US doliar denominated procurement contracts, given
that our reporting currency is the euro. TomTom does not
hedge translation risk, i.e. the risk which arnises on the
translation of non-euro denominated income statements
and balance sheets of subsidiaries. Movements in the
market values of instruments entered into by TornTom are
taken to the profit and loss statement since

TormTom does not apply hedge accounting.

Mergers and acquisitions

Applied Generics Lid.

In January 2006, the Group acquired 100% of the share
capital of Applied Generics Ltd. Applied Generics, located
in Scotland, has developed technology that makes it
possible to generate reakime road traffic information
based on mobile network usage and cell-switching.

In October we announced our joint development
programme based on this technology with Vodafone
Netherlands. This development will see our in-house
patented technology convert anonymous, raw GSM
signalling data — supplied by Vodafone Netherlands'
network —into accurate, realiime, information on the
speed and direction of cars travelling throughout the road
network of the Netherlands. The technology has been
tested and proven on a regional scale and this will be

the world's first nationwide, commercial deployment.

37 TomTom Annuat Report 2006




As a global company TomTom is affected by economic
developments in dlifferent geographical locations and is
susceptible 1o a variety of business risks that may
negatively impact our business objectives.

Revenues, gross margins, profitability, liquidity and cash
flows may fluctuate unpredictably due to a number of
factors. Through a process of weighing the probability and
impact of identified risks we establish the factors and
variables which may particularly impact the sensitivity of
results in order to take steps to minimise the potential
adverse effects. TomTom's results of operations or financial
condition could be materially adversely affected by any
number of the external risk factors; the most imporiant risks
identified are highlighted below. These risks should be
considered in connection with any forwarcHooking
statements. There may be risks not yet known to us or
athers currently not deemed to be material that could have a
significant potential financial impact on the business.

Financial risks
The principal categories of financial risk to which we are
exposed are exchange rate risk and credit risk.

Exchange rate risl

TormTom's principal currency translation risk arises from
the fact that the financial records of our subsidiaries in
the United Kingdom, the United States and Australia are
rnaintained in local currency. Our euro-denominaied
consolidated reported financial results can be affected
by changes in the relative value of those local currencies
against the euro. Additionally, fluctuations in currency
values distort period-toperiod comparisons of financial
performance. We do not hedge these transtation risks.

In 2006 TomTom sold its products in Europe, Austratia and
North America. The products are sold in the local currency
to distributors and retailers. Our PNDs are sourced from
contract manufacturers in Asia and mainly priced to us in US
dollars. TomTom’s principat currency transaction risk arises
from the mismatch of our revenues being significantly in
euros and pounds sterling and our cost of sales being
mostly in US dollars. We manage these currency
transaction rnisks by use of financial instruments.

Credit risk

We sell the butk of our products through distributors
and retailers. Certain customers of ours have built up
considerable trade receivable accounts with us.

We have procedures to limit our exposure to credit risk
from our customers. Losses resulting from the insolvency
of our customers for sales in Europe are covered by an
excess of loss insurance contract. In 2006 we did not file a
claim under the terms of this insurance.

Business Risks

GPS availability and cost risks

Qur products depend on GPS satellite ransmissions

to provide position data to our custormers. GPS satellites
are funded and maintained by the US government and
we have no control over therr maintenance, support

or repair. The free use and availability of GPS signals
remains at the sole discretion of the US government.

GPS signals are carried on radic frequency bands
specifically allocated on a global basis. Any reallocation
or interference of these bands could impair the use

of our products. '

We are dependent on GPS satellites and infrastructure
technology for the use of our products.

Market and competition risks

The market for satellite navigation products in each of

the geographic markets in which we operate is highly
dynamic and competitive, There can be no assurance that
our products will compete successiully against current or
new market entrants or competing technologies. Our
markets are characterised by rapid technological change,
which could render our products obsolete and could
cause us to make substantial expenditures to replace

our products.

We mitigate these risks by investing in the development
of our technology and by focusing on innovative benefits
for our customers.

Sales price risk

The sales prices of TomTom's products are primarily
affected by the competition the Company faces in its
markets, pricing compared to altermnative products, its
ability to provide enhanced services (such as TomTom
PLUS} and the strength of the TomTom brand in terms of
quality, reliability and userfriendliness. TomTom expects
the sales prices it charges for its products to decrease over
time as competition intensifies in the market and more
personal navigation products become available.

We mitigate these risks of sales price pressure primarily via
cost engineering our products and by seeking operational
cost leverage from increasing sales volumes.

Brand erosion risk

We rmay not be able to sustain or improve the strength of
our brand, and we may consequently experience difficulty
in maintaining our market acceptance. If we fail to increase
awareness of our brand and to strengthen our reputation
for providing smart, easy-to-use and high-quality personal
navigation products and services, or if any other factor
negatively affects our reputation or our brand image, such
as adverse consumer publicity, this could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations

or financial condition.
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Product diversification risk

The majority of our revenue is derived from integrated
personal navigation devices consisting of the family of
GO products, TomTom ONE and RIDER. I new product
implementaticns do not achieve required levels of market
acceptance, or if the speed of development and time-
to-market of these products compares unfavourably to
directly cornpeting products, this could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations

or financial condition.

By expanding our other revenue streams, seeking new
markets and introducing new products in the business-
to-business sector {TomTom WORK), we aim to diversify
product concentration risks over the medium and
long-term.

Demand forecasting risk

Forecasting demand for TomTom’s products is important
1o our financial performance and to maintaining good
customer relationships with distributors and retailers. If the
number of units needed is over-forecasted, TomTom could
face downward pricing pressure and a resulting loss of
revenues, and an increase in finished goods inventory and

net working capital. if demand is under-forecasted followed

by a shartage of products, TomTom could face unfulfifled
consumer demand and the resulting loss of revenues, as
well as damage to its reputation and relationships with
distributors and retailers.

As part of mitigating this risk, we monitor sell-through
rates and expectations of future demand at our major
distributors and retailers.

New product introduction risk

TomTom introduced a significant number of new and
upgraded products and services this year. The transition
to new products requires careful management of existing
stock levels. The introduction of new products, together
with seasonal demand, significantly increases working
capital requirernents,

If there is excess existing stock when a new product

is released, the retail price of the existing stock is likely

to decrease and TomTom would, in certain circumstances,
owe compensation to its distrnbutors and retailers on

the price difference for their existing stock.

Our success is dependent on our ability to develop and
commercialise new and upgraded products and services,
the timing of releases of these, our product mix relative

1o that of our competitors, and our ability to meet changing
consumer preferences.

Businass Risks

Outsourcing risks

TomTom depends on a limited number of third parties,
and in certain instances sole suppliers for component
supply and manufacturing. Our supply chain and
distribution model is outsourced and this increases our
ability to scale up or down the supply chain while imiting
capital expenditure risks. However, any disruption to or
termination of TomTom'’s relationships with thirdparty
manufacturers, suppliers or distributors, or reduction in
their ability to meet our needs could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations or
financial condition.

We continually evaluate the risks associated with the use
of outsource partners, which includes business continuity
planning. In order to further mitigate this risk we have
established a Quality Assurance function which will
enhance the monitoring and management of the risk of
production continuity by our manufacturing partners and
component suppliers.

International expansion risks

The global nature of our business increases risks
associated with our international operations and with our
potential future expansion into new international markets.
Our business operations span five continents and
accordingly, we face economic, regulatory, legal and
political risks inherent in having relationships, operations
and sales in a variety of jurisdictions.

Our rapid growth in a relatively short period of time has
placed, and may continue to place, significant demands
and strains on our resources, our systems, internal controls
and management. If we are unable to successiully
integrate new personnel or systems, or if we otherwise
fail 1o successfully manage our growth, this could have
a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations or financial condition.

The future development and success of our business
depends in a large part on the future general level of
demand for personal navigation preducts and, in particular,
on demand for our products. The market for personal
navigation products is still developing, with modest
penetration levels in our target markets. [tis difficult to
predict both the future growth of the market and the
size of our future customer base. Cansumer demand
for personal navigation products generally, or for our
products and services specifically, may fail to grow at
anticipated rates.
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Human resources risks

The success of our business depends upen attracting,
integrating and retaining qualified personnel in senior
management, sales and marketing, research and
development, supply chain management and other

key areas. The loss of key members of management
could have a material adverse effect on our business. In
addition, if we are unable to retain or to increase our pool
of talented personnel to keep pace with our overall rate
of growth, our business could suffer,

In order to mitigate this risk we have established policies
for attracting and retaining staff, which include
managerment training and successian planning.

Information technology disruption risk

Our information technology, telecommunications and
other infrastructure systems, face the risk of failure
which could seriously disrupt our operations. Although
we have back-up procedures in place, our operations
and our information technology, telecommunications and
other infrastructure systems are vuinerable to damage
and interruption. A significant disrupticn in the availability
of our information technology, telecommunications or
other infrastructure systems could cause interruptions in
our service to customers, loss of or delays in our research
and development waork and our product shipments or
affect our distributor and consumer refationships.

Business Risks

Intellectual property risks

We rely on a combination of trademarks, trade names,
patents, confidentiality and non-disclosure clauses and
agreements, copyrights and design rights to define and
protect our trade secrets and rights to the intellectual
property in our products. Although we have implemented
protection mechanisms, these may prove to be
inadequate, or they may not extend to all countries in
which we operate or may in the future operate, or may not
cover all our intellectual property assets.

We may be faced with claims that we infringe the
intellectual property rights of others, leading to rovalty
costs, licence fees, legal costs, a restriction on the use
of certain technologies and inncvations, or an inability
to secure intellectual property rights.

Product quality risks

We are subject to risks resulting from defects in our
products as well as retuns and warranty expenses. We
develop complex hardware and software products which
may contain defects in design or manufacturing or other
errors or failures. Quality control and procedures for testing
and manufacturing to our specifications are largely in the
hands of our centract manufacturers, and we retain liability
for fallure in production caused by defective product design
or error. Material defects in any of our products could thus
result in decreasing revenues, increased operating costs
and the possibility of significant consumer products fiability.

In order to mitigate this risk we have estabiished a
Quality Assurance function to enhance the monitaring
of the quality of our contract manufacturers and
component supphers.

Product liability claims

Product liability claims prasent the risk of protracted
litigation, financial damages, lawyer's fees, and diversion of
management’s attention frorm the operation of our
business. The use of map data by and provision of route
instructions to vehicle drivers carries an inherent risk of
product liability claims and associated adverse publicity.
We use disclaimers, limitations of liability and simitar
provisions in our licence agreements but we cannot be
absolutely sure that these provisions will prove 1o be
effective barriers to product liability claims.

We attempt to mitigate the risks of product liability claims

through product testing and by including security features
in the product design.
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for the year ended 31 Decermber

f

: Notes 2006 2005
(€ in thousandst

Revenue 3 1,363,758 720,031
Cost of sales ) 785131 409,194
Gross profit 578,627 310,837
Operating expenses

Research and development expenses 36,244 8,949
Marketing expenses 100,812 63,556
Selling, general and administrative expenses 80,033 38,014
Stock compensation expense (18} 2131 5,241
Operating expenses (6) 238410 115,760
Operating profit 340,217 195,077
Financial {expense) and Income, net (7} -24,681 14,664
Profit before tax 315,636 209,741
Income tax B 93,355 66,784
Net profit 222,181 142,957
Earnings per share {in €}

Basic @ 20 137
Diluted 1.90 1.26

Consolidated Statement of Income of TomTom NV
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as of 31 December (after proposed appropriation of the net result)

Notes 2006 2005
[ in thousands)
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets (10 39,183 15,845
Property, plant and equipment (1 7,926 5,168
Deferred tax assets (20} 12,061 1,307
Total non-current assets 59,170 22,320
Current assets
Inventories (12} 123,005 103,183
Trade receivables (13 265,990 150,985
Other receivables and prepayments (14) 16,320 5,084
Other financial assets (15 682 3,661
Cash and cash equivalents {16) 437,801 178,377
Total current assets 843,798 441 280
Total assets 902,968 463,600
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital {17) 22584 21,456
Share premium 115,075 115,091
Legal reserves - 2,804 1813
Stock compensation reserve (18} 32,364 11,589
Retained eamings 377,963 156,394
Total equity 550,790 306,343
Provisions (19) 43,785 20,981
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liability 20) 962 756
Long-termiiability 338 301
Total non-current liabilities 1,300 1,057
Current liabilities
Trade payables 66,744 55,390
Taxes and social security 72,557 16,147
Accruals 88,683 42618
Other liabilities 79,109 21,064
Total current liabilities 307,003 135,219
Total equity and fiabilities 902,968 463,600

Consclidated Balance Sheet of TomTom NV
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far the year ended 31 December

) Notes 2006 2005

€ in thousards)
Cash flow from operating activities
Qperating profit 340,217 195,077
Financial fosses) and gaing -19,890 8,604
Cepreciation of property, plant and equiprment 4,393 1,844
Amortisation of intangible assets 13,800 1,579
Changs to provisions 22,840 20,888
Change to stock compensation reserve (18 20,776 8974
Changes in working capital:

Increase in inventories -19.822 89,782

Increase in receivablas and prepayments -125,695 -121,710

Increase in current liabilities 155,499 76,928
Cash generated from operations 392118 102,402
Interest received 9,460 3.136
Corporate income taxes paid -110,011 62,528
Net cash flow from operating activities 291,507 43.010
Cash flow used in investing activities
Investrments in intangible assets’ 21,419 16,464
Investments in property, plant and eguipment -7.151 4,957
Total cash flow used in investing activities -28,570 21,421
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds on issue of ordinary shares 1113 116,546
Total cash flow from financing activities 1,113 116,546
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 264,050 138,135
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 178,377 40,167
Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held in foreign currencies -4,626 75
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 437,801 178,377

' The acquisition of Applied Generics is classified as an investment inintangble assets, as the substance

of the acquisition was to acquire intellectual property and not to acquire a business {see note 22).

Consolidated Staterment of Cash Flow of TomTom NV
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Notes Share Share Legal Stock Retained Tota !
capital peemim reseves compersaton eamings ;
esene

€ in thousands)
Balance as at 31 December 2004 18 619 961 2,614 33,594 37,806
Translation differences 58 58
Transfer to legal reserves 794 -794 0
Net income (expense) recognised
directly in equity - 852 -794 58
Profit for the year 142,957 142,957
Total recognised income and expense 862 142,163 143,015
Stock compensation resenve {18} 8.975 8,975
Recepitalisation 19,982 619 -19,363 0
Issue of share capital 17 1,456 115,081 116,547
Balance as at 31 December 2005 21,456 115,031 1,813 11589 156,394 306,343
Translation differences 379 379
Transfer to legal reserves 612 612 0
Net income {expense)} recognised
directly in equity ] 991 512 379
Profit for the year 222181 222181
Total recognised income and expense 991 221,569 222,560
Stock compensation reserve (18} 21,321 21,321
Issue of share capital {(17) 1,128 -18 546 566
Balance as at 31 December 2006 22,584 115,075 2,804 32,364 377,963 550,790

Statutory provisions with respect to appropriation of results

According to the Company's Articles of Association, the Company's reserves may be distributed to shareholders,
provided that total shareholders’ equity exceeds the called-up and paid-up capital of the Company, increased

by legal and statutory reserves.

Legal reserves
Legal reserves are non-distributable reserves that have been recorded for the amount of capitalised internal
software development costs and cumulative translation adjustments.

Stock compensation reserve
The stock compensation reserve represents the cumulative expense of issued share options that have been

granted but not exercised together with the amount of a tax benefit relating to the tax deduction that exceeds
the related cumulative expense.

Con.soh'dated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’
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1. General

TomTom NV {the “Company") has its statutory seat

in Amsterdam, the Netherlands. The Company has

its headquarters in Amsterdam, the Netherlands. The
activities of the Company include the development and
sale of navigation solutions. The primary focus of these
activities is on personal navigation.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2006 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
“the Group”).

The financial statements have been prepared by the
Board of Management and authorised for issue on

22 February 2007. The financial statements will be
submitted for approval to the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders on 25 April 2007. In accordance with
section 402 of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands
Civil Code, a condensed income statement is included
in the Company financial statements.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
Adcntion of nsw end ravised standards

In the current year, the Group has adopted all of the

new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board {the IASB)
and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (the IFRIC) of the 1ASB that are relevant to
its operations and effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on 1 January 2006. The adoption of these
new and revised Standards and Interpretations has not
resulted in changes to the Group's accounting policies
for the current or prior years. At the date of authorisation of
these financial statements, the following Standards and
Interpretations were in issue but not yet effective:

— IFRS 7 Financial instrurments: disclosures

— IFRS 8 Operating segments

— IFRIC 7 Applying the restatement approach under IAS 29
— IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2

— IFRIC 9 Reassessment of embedded derivatives

— IFRIC 10 Interim financial reporting and impairment

— IFRIC 11 IFRS 2: group and treasury share transactions
— IFRIC 12 Service concession arrangements

The Group anticipaies that the adoption of these Standards
and Interpretations in future periods will have

na material financial impact on the financial statements

of the Group.

Notes to the Financial Statements of TomTom NV

Basis of accounting

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the EU.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for derivatives and financial
instruments, classified as held for trading or available
for sale, which are stated at fair value.

Unless otherwise indicated, assets and liabilities are
carried at their nominal value. Income and expenses
are accounted for on an accrual basis.

The preparation of these financial statements requires
that the Group makes assumptions, estimates and
judgements that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
as of the date of the consolidated financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual resulis may differ from those
estimates, Estimates are used when accounting for items
and matters such as revenue recognition, allowances for
uncollectible accounts recewvable, inventory obsolescence,
product warrarty costs, depreciation and amaortisation,
asset valuations, impairment assessments, taxes, earn-out
provisions, other provisions, stock-based compensation
and contingencies. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
10 accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised it the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of revision and the future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods. The principal accounting policies adopted are

set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate

the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company {(its subsidiaries). Controi is
achieved where the Company has the power 1o govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as

to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidianes acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up
to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial

statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.
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All inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

The consolidated financial statements for 2006 include
the financial statements of TomTom NV and the
following subsidiaries:

ubsidiary narme Country of Place Proportio
incorporation of residence  of ownersh'%

and residence intgres

TormTom International BV NL Amsterdam 100%
TomTom Sales BV NL Amsterdam 100%
Baldivi BV NL Amsterdam 100%
TomTom Inc. Us Concord, MA 100%
TormTorm Software Ltd. UK London 100%
Applied Generics Ltd. UK Edinburgh 100%
TomTom Asia Ltd. TwW Taipei 100%
Drivetech inc. ™ Taipei 100%
JomTom WORK GmbH! DE Leipzig 100%

' TormTom WORK GmbH was formetly known as Datafactory AG

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
as the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifizble assets,
liabilities and contingent ligbilities that meet the conditions
for recognition under IFRS 3 "Business Combinations”
are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The provision for earn-outs relates to acquisitions where
part of the purchase consideration is a future eam-out

for the former shareholders of acquired companies. The
Group provides for future costs related to these earn-outs
based on (or related to) estimates of future results that
determine the future cash outflows. The earn-out provision
represents the best estimate of payments which will be
made under the earn-out arrangements, taking into
account the provisions of the related contract and the
performance criterta included.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset
and inttially measured at cost, being the excess of the
cost of the business combination aver the Group’s interest
in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment,
the Group's interest i the net fair value of the acauiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess
IS recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.

Notes to the Financial Statements of TomTorm NV

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured as the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods and services provided in the normal course of
business. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer
returns, rebates and other simitar allowances. Revenue

on the sale of goods is only recognised when the risks

and rewards of ownership of goods are transferred to

the Group's customers {which include distributors,
retailers, end-users and Original Equiprment Manufacturers
{"OEMs")}. The risks and rewards of ownership are
generally transferred at the time the product is shipped and
delivered to the customer and, depending on the delivery
cenditions, title and risk have passed to the customer and
acceptance of the product, when contractually required,
has been obtained. In cases where contractuai acceptance
is not required, revenue is recognised when management
has established that all aforementioned conditions for
revenue recognition have been met. Examples of the
above-mentioned delivery conditions are “Free on Board
point of delivery” and “Costs, Insurance Paid point of
delivery”, where the point of defivery may be the shipping
warehouse or any other point of destination as agreed

in the contract with the customer and where title and

risk in the goods passes to the customer.

TomTom reduces revenue for estimates of sales
incentives. Ve offer sales incentives, including channel
rebates and end-user rebates for our producis. The
estimate is based on our historical experience taking
into account future expectations.

When returns are probable an estimate is made of the
expected financial impact of these returns. The estimate
is based upon historical data on the return rates and
information on the inventory levels in the distribution
channel. The estimated probable returns are recorded
as a direct deduction from revenue and cost of sales.

If there is excess stock at retailers when a price reduction
becomes effective TomTom will compensate its
customers on the price difference for their existing stock.
Customers are eligible for such compensation if certain
criteria are met. To reflect the costs related to known price
reductions in the income statement an accrual is created
against revenue.
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Interest income
Inﬁeres‘[ income is accrued on a time basis, based on the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate.

Leasing

l.eases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease substantially transfer all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases. The Group has not entered
into any material finance leasing arrangements. Rentals
payable under operating leases are charged to income on
a straightdine basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
INto an operating lease are also spread on a straightdine
basis over the lease term.

Fareign currencies

The Company's primary activities are denominated in
euros. Accordingly, the Company has chosen the euro
as its functionat currency.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual
entities, transactions in currencies other than the
Company’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Non-
ronatary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevatling
at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

For consolidation purposes, the Company classifies its
subsidiaries as "foreign entities”. The assets and liabilities
are translated at the year end spot rate, whereas the
income statement is translated at the average monthly
exchange rate. Translation differences arising thereon are
taken t0 a separate component of shareholders” equity
{cumulative translation adjustment).

In order to mitigate the risks 1o foreign currency exposures,
the Group enters into forward contracts and options

(see next paragraph for details of the Group’s accounting
policy in respect of financial instruments).

Notes to the Financial Staterments of TomTom NY

The principal exchange rates applied for the non-euro
currencies are:

Rate Rate

Average asat31  Awverage asat31

rate for December ratefor December]

2006 2006 2005 2005

Australian dollar 0.600 0.597 n/a n/a
US dollar 0.800 0.758 0.803 0.845
Great Britain pound sterling  1.446 1.485 1.462 1.453
New Taiwanese doltar 0.025 0.023 0.025 0.026
Chinese yuan 0.106 0.097 na na

Financial instruments and hedge policy

The Group’s activities expose it to the financial risks of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments {primarily shori-term foreign
currency forward contracts and options) to manage the
risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations relating
to certain committed and anticipated transaction exposures.
The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group’s
policies approved by the Supervisory Board, which provide
wiritten principles on the use of financial derivatives
consistent with the Group's sk managerment strategy.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments for
speculative purposes. Derivative financial instruments are
initially measured at fair value on the contract date, and ere
marked again to fair value at subsequent reporting dates.
Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments
are recognised in the profit and loss account as they arise,
since hedge accounting is not applied by the Group.

Exchange results from the transtation of foreign currency
balances and resulting from the settlement of forward
contracts and options are included in financial income and
expenses. Foreign exchange results related to currency
differences on trade invoices received in US dollars are
recognised in cost of sales.

Retirement benefit costs

Contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered services entitling them to the contributions.
Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are dealt with as payments to defined
contribution plans where the Group’s obligations under
the plans are equivalent to those arising in a defined
contribution retirement benetit plan.
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Stock compensation expense

The Group issues share options, which qualify as equity-
settled share-based payments, 1o eligible employees
including members of management. Equity-settled share-
based payrments are measured at fair value at the date of
grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest. Fair
value is measured by use of the Black and Scholes model.
The expected life of the share options used in the model
has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise
restrictions, and behavioural considerations. At each
balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates

of the number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. It recognises the impact of the revision

of original estimates, if any, in the income statement,
and makes a corresponding adjustment to equity (stock
compensation reserve) over the remaining vesting
period. The proceeds received, net of any directly
attributable transaction costs, are credited 10 share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when the
options are exercised.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Deferred 1axes are calculated using the liability method.
Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of
temporary differences between the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities for financizl reporting purposes
and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates
expected 10 apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected 1o be recovered
or settled. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the balance sheet date, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and fiabilities.

Deferred tax assets are recognised when it is probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the
deferred tax assets can be utilised. The carrying amount of
deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised as an expense
or income in the profit and loss account, except when they
relate to items credited or charged directly to equity, in
which case the tax is also recognised directly in equity, or
where they arise from the inftial accounting for a business
combination,

Notes to the Financial Statements of ToniTom NV

Intangible assets

Davelopment costs N
Internally generated software development costs ansing
from the creation and update of the Company’s core
software technology are recognised as an asset only

if all of the following relevant criteria are rmet:

— an asset is created that can be identified;

- i1 5 probable that the asset created will generate
future economic benefits; and

— the development cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.

Internal software development costs related to creating
and upgrading the Group's core software platform are
capitalised and amortised on a straightine basis over the
useful economic life of the software, which is estimated
to be four years.

Internal software costs not relating to the Group's

core software platform are expensed as research and
development costs as incurred on the basis that on
average these costs have a useful economic life of less
than one year.

Engineering costs relating to the detailed manufacturing
design of new products are recorded in the income
statement as research and development expenses

as incurred.

The Group is required to use estimates, assumptions and
judgements to determine the expected useful economic
lives and future economic benefits of these costs. Such
estimates are made on a regular basis or as appropriate
throughout the year as they can be significantly affected
by changes in technology and other factors.

Acquired technokogy

intangible assets arising from acquisiions are amortised
using the straight-ine method over their estimated
economic lives, which is estimated 1o be four years.
Economic lives are re-evaluated every year.

Computer software

Computer software includes purchased software to
facifitate our global information processing. The software is
amortised on a straightdine basis over its estimated useful
life of two to five years.
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Propzriy, plant end eguivment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment charges.
Depreciation is recorded on a straight-fine basis over the
estimated useful economic lives of the assets as follows:

Furniture and fixtures

Computer equipment and hardware
Vehicles

Tools and moulds

4-8 years
2-4 years

4 years
1-2 years

The costs of tools and moulds used in the manufacturing
of the Group's products are capitalised within property,
plant and equipment, and depreciated within research and
development costs over their estimated useful economic
lves, which is usually less than a year.

Impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date the Group reviews the
carrying armounts of its tangible and mtangible assets to
determine whether changes in circumstances indicaie that
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.

It such indication exists, the recoverable amount will be
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. The value in use equals
the net present value of the future cash flow generated
by the asset, using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying
armount, a reduction to the carrying amaount is made.
Such an impairment 10ss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit} is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, so that the increased carrying amount does

not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
profit and loss account, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Notes to the Financial Statements of TomTom NY

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of inventories comprises

costs of purchase and assembly and conversion to
finished products. It excludes borrowing costs. The cost
of inventories is recorded using the first-in first-out (FIFQ)
cost basis, net of reserves for cbsolescence and any
excess stock. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less an estimate of the costs

of completion and direct selling costs.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are stated at nominal value. Appropriate
allowances for estimated unrecoverable amounts are
recognised in the profit and toss account when there is
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of recevables.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at face value and
comprise cash-on-hand, deposits held on call with banks,
and other short-term highly liguid investments that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all

of its tiabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required 1o settle that obligaticn.
Provisions are measured at management’s best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value
where the effectis material.

The Group provides for warranty claims based on historical
and estimated return rates per product line and estimated
average repair costs. Warranty costs are recorded within
cost of sales.

Other provisions are recorded for probable lizbilities that
can be reasonably estimated. The pravisions include legal
claims and tax risks for which it is more kkely than not
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle

the obligation.
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3. Segment reporting

During the period the Group operated in one
business line; personal navigation solutions. The Group

generates sales across different geographical regions.
2006 2005i
Revenue i€ in thousands}
Europe 1,226,331 670,416
North America 106,238 42320
Rest of world 31,189 7.295
Total 1,363,758 720,031
2006 2005,
ot profit (€ in thousands) I
Europe 225892 144,126
North America 4,739 -1,228
Rest of world 1,028 59
Total 222131 142 957
2006 2009
hssets (€ in thousanos) |
Europe 803,494 409,191
North America 91312 50,500
Rest of world 8,162 3,909
Total 902,968 463,600
2006 2005
Depreciation € n thousands) ]
Europe 4,145 1,760
North America 187 54
Rest of world 62 30
Total 4,394 1,844
L 2006 2005‘
izbilities (€ in thousands}
Europe 322,421 142,299
North America 23,617 13,665
Rest of world 6,140 1,293
Total 352,178 157,257
pital expenditures on property, plart 2006 2005
nd equipinent (€ i thousands)
Europe 6,866 4733
North America 230 65
Rest of waorld 55 159
Total 7,153 4,957

Notes to the Financial Statements of TomTom NV

2006 2008
Llumser of employees at vear and f
Europe 715 385
North America 56 32
Rest of world 47 18
Total 818 435

4. Costof sales

The Group's cost of sales consists of material costs for
goods sold to customers, royalty and licence expenses and
fulfilment costs incurred on inventory sold during the year.

5. Employee benefits

Retirement benefit scherme

The Group's retirement benefit plans are classified as
defined contribution plans, limiting the employer's legal
obligation 1o the amount it agrees to contnbute during
the period of employment.

Employees in the United States are offered the opportunity
to participate in the 401K pension plan, which involves

no contribution or obligation from the Group besides
withholding and paying the employee contribution.

Remuneration policy for mambaears of e
Management Board and the Sugerviscry Board
Remuneration of members of the Management Board
is drawn up and approved by the Supervisory Board.

In accordance with the Dutch Corporate Governance
Code as issued on 9 December 2003, the remuneration
of Supervisory Board memibers does not depend on
the results of the Company. The Company does not
grant either stock options or shares to its Supervisory
Board members and the Company does not provide
loans to them.

The total remuneration paid to or on behalf of members of
the Management Board in the year ended 31 December
2006 amounted to approximately €2.0 million (2005; €2.2

| million}, of which approximately 60% represented bonus

payments (2005: 37%,). The maximum bornus is calculated
as 1% of profit before tax and 1s shared equally across all
members of the Senior Management Team including the
members of the Management Board provided that certain
financial and personal targets are met. The financial targets
make up 90% of the bonus and the operational targets
make up 10% of the bonus.
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Overview of salaries, performance-related bonuses and other emoluments

i Salary Bonus Ciher Total
| emolurments’  remuneration
2006 tr €)

Management Board

Harold Goddijr 194,400 394,420 588,820
Alexander Ribhink 194,400 394,420 17,790 606,610
Marina Wyatt .352,941 394,420 28,020 776,281
Total 741,741 1,183,260 46,710 1,971,711
i Safary Bonus Uther Tetal
L emoluments’  remuneration
200540 €

Management Board

Harold Goddijn 186,319 282,383 468,702
Alexander Ribhink 180,000 282,383 462 363
Marina Wyatt 307.834 263,162 724113 1,285,109
Total 674,153 827,928 724,113 2,226,194

' The other emoluments do not include share option costs. An overview of share
optiens is given in the table below.

* In accordance with the terms of her employment contract, the Chief Financial Officer
received a success fee of £500,000 {gross) on completion of the Glebat Offerin 2005.

There are five other executives designated as key management. The total remuneration for these senior executives
amounted 1o €3.0 million (2005; €2.1 million).

Overview of aggregate numbers of stock options held by the Management Board

{ Cutstanding Granted xercised  Cutstanding Exercise Expiry
3 1 Jarary in 2006 2006 31 December orice in Date
! 2006 2006 e -
Alexander Ribbink 2,000,026 2,000,026 025 01/09/08
1,499,992 1,499,992 375 01/11/09
1,499,992 1,499,992 2882 10/1112
Marina VWyatt 500,000 500,000 26.44 10/08/12
500,000 500,000 33.96 09/11/13
Total 5,500,010 500,000 2,000,026 3,999,984
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Overview of remuneration of members

of the Supervisory Board
Benno Hoogendoom
{resigned in September 2005) 20,000

Andrew Browne (Chairman) 40,000 22500
Guy Demuynck 30,000 22,500
Doug Dunn 30,0600 22500
Total 100,000 87,500

The Supervisory Board was established on 13 May 2005.
The remuneration of the members of the Supervisory
Board amounted to €100,000 (2005:; €87,500).

6. Additional information regarding

operating expenses
Included in the operating expenses are, among others,
the following items:

2006 2005
Personnel expenses (€ in thousangs)
Salaries 42125 17,636
Social security costs 3,150 1,622
Pensicns 1,024 498
Granted share options 21,321 5,240
Other 15,090 8,607
Total personnel expenses 82,710 31,603

Average number of employees

The average number of employees in 2006 was 627
(2005; 316). At 31 December 2008, the Greup had
818 (2005: 435) employees.

Operating expenses include an amount of €18.2 million
for depreciation and amcrtisation expenses
{(2005: €3 .4 million}.

2006 2005
€ in thousands)
Amortisation expenses 13,800 1,579
Depreciation expensas 4,394 1,844
Total 18,194 3,423

The costs for operating leases in 2006 amounted to
€1.7 million (2005: €1.3 million).

Noies to the Financial Statements of TomTom NV

7. Financial income and expenses
Financial income and expenses include the
following items:

2006 2005
€ in thousands)
Interest income 9,400 3,136
Interest expense -1,815 747
Exchange rate {losseslgains -32,266 12,275
Total -24,681 14,664

The foreign exchange loss in 2006 can mainly be
attributed to forward foreign exchange contracts to
purchase US dollars in order to pay our most significant
contract manufacturers. We revalue all cur forward
contracts at the end of each period whether or not they
have matured. This loss therefore is made up of both
realised and unrealised net losses.

The interest expense mainly relates to interest costs
on income tax liabilities.
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8. Income tax

The activities of the Group are subject to corporate income
tax in several countries depending on presence and activity.
The applicable statutory tax rates vary between 25% and
40%. This, together with non-deductible amortisation of
intangible assets and some timing differences, can cause
the effective tax rate o differ from the Dutch corporate
tax rate,

Note 2006 2{11'5}
€ in thousands)
Current tax expense 119,622 57,656
Deferred tax {20} 26,267 -1.852
Through equity 10,980
Total tax expense for
calculating effective tax rate 93,355 66,784
The effective tax rate, based on income before taxes,

was 29.6% (2005; 31.8%). The reconciliation between
the tax charge on the basis of the Dutch tax rate and the
effective tax rate 1s as follows:

¥ et 1R

2006 2005

Dutch tax rate 29.6% 31.5%
Higher weighted average statutory

rate on Group activities 0.6% 0.1%
Amortisation of intangible assets

(including deferred tax position) -0.6% 02%
Stock compensation expense

{including deferred tax position) 0.1%
Utilisation of previoushy

unrecogmised tax losses 0.2%
Other 0.2% 0.1%
Effective tax rate 29.6% 31.8%

Notes to the Financial Statements of TomTom NV
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9. Earnings per share
The calculation of basic and diluted eamings per share is
based on the following data:

2006 2000

Earnings (€ in thousands}
Earnings {net profit attributable
1o equity holders)
Number of shares
Weighted average nurnber
of ordinary shares for basic
eamings per share
Effect of dilutive potential
ordinary shares
Share options
Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for diluted
earnings per share

222,181 142,957

110279686 104,247 526

6,875,957 9,426,794

117,155,643 113674320

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

Dituted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting

the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all potential dilutive
ordinary shares. The Company has one category of
potential dilutive ordinary shares: share options. For these
share options a calculation is done to determine the
number of shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average annual market share
price of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated as above
is compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for
dituted earnings per share for the period up until the IPO

in May 2005, has been computed on a pro forma basis
assuming the change in the number of shares outstanding
to 100 million had been eftective for all of 2005.
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10.Intangible assets

Development Acquired Software Total
costs technoiogy
€ in thousands)
Balance as at 31 December 2004
Investment cost 1,649 1,549
Accumulated amortisation -589 589
960 960
Movements
Investments 1,254 1,254
Acquired intangible assets 15,210 15,210
Amortisation charges 467 -1,112 -1,579
787 14,098 14,885
Balance as at 31 December 2005
investment cost 2,803 15,210 18,013
Accumulated amortisation 1,056 -1,112 2,168
1,747 14,098 15,845
Movements
Investments’ 1.296 34,083 1,944 37,323
Amortisation charges 684 12,336 -780 -13,800
Transferred from property, plant and eguipment 45 45
Net foreign currency exchange differences -230 -230
612 21,617 1,208 23,338
Balance as at 31 December 2006
Irvestment cost 4099 48,293 1,989 55,381
Accumulated amortisation -1,740 -13,448 -780 -15,968
Net foreign currency exchange differences -230 -230
2,359 35,615 1,209 39,183

' The investmients in 2006 include an amount of €15.7 milien which is related to the gross-up of the intangible assets (see also note 20 on deferred income tax).

Based upon management'’s assessment at the reporiing date there was no indication that intangible assets were
impaired. The intangible assets have finite useful lives.

Notes to the Financial Statements of TormTom NV
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11. Property, plant and equipment

' Fumiture Computer Other Total

} ‘ and fixtures hardwarg'

€ In thousands)

Balance as at 31 December 2004

Investment cost 1.442 1,550 312 3,304

Accumulated depreciation -182 -838 234 1,254
1,260 712 78 2,050

Movements

Investments 1,398 2,308 1,180 4,887

Acquisition of subsidiary 10 €8 60 137

Disposals {nat -40 4 -18 £2

Depreciation charges 451 933 -460 -1,844

917 1438 762 3.118

Balance as at 31 December 2005

Investrment cost 2671 3,666 1,223 7,560

Accumulated depreciation -494 -1,515 -383 -2,392
2,177 2,15% 840 5,168

Movements

Investments 2,062 2,258 2,950 7.270

Transferred to ntangible assets 45 45

Disposals (net) 21 -19 33 73

Depreciation charges -970 -1.994 -1,430 -4,394
1,071 200 1,487 2,758

Balance as at 31 December 2006

Investmenit cost 4,705 5,973 4,128 14,806

Accumulated depreciation -1,457 -3,622 -1,801 6,880
3248 2,351 23727 7.926

' In 2006 software was transferred from property, plant and equipment 1o inanglble assets.

No impairment of property, plant and equipment was identified during the accounting period.

12. Inventories

1- 2006 2005

€ inthousands)

Finished goods 61,571 24,509

Comporents and subrassemblies 61,434 78,674

Inventories 123,005 103,183

The cost of inventories recogrised as an expense and included in cost of sales amounted to €693 million

(2005: €356 million).

As a result of the write-down of inventories to their net realisable value the Greup recognised costs of €5.6 million
{2005: €3.3 million). These costs are included in cost of sales.

Notes to the Financial Statements of TormTom Ny
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13. Trade receivables

— 2006 2005
t€ in thousands}
Gross trade receivables 268,592 163,235
Allowance for doubitiul receivables -2,602 -2,250
Trade receivables {net) 265,990 150,985

All receivables are expected to be recovered within a year.
An allowance has been made for estimated unrecoverable
arnounts from the sale of goods.

The carrying amount of trade receivables approximates
their fair value.

There is no significant concentration of credit risk with
respect to trade receivables, as the Group has a large
number of customers who are internationally dispersed.

Credit risk is minimised by excess loss insurance for all
European customer receivables {see page 38 of this
annual report).

14. Other receivables and prepayments

2006 2005
€ n thousands}
Prepayments 3,048 1,483
VAT and other taxes 8,896 834
Other receivables 4,376 2,707
Other receivables and prepayments 16,320 5,084

The carrying amount of the other receivables and
prepayments approximates their fair value.

Notes to the Financial Statements of TomTom NV

15. Other financial assets

The Group utilises currency derivatives 1o mitigate
significant risks related to fuiure transactions and cash
flows. The main currency risk to which the Group is
exposed is the mismatch between the purchases which
are mainly denominated in US dollars and revenues which
are mainly denominated in euros. The Group does not
purchase or hold financial instruments for trading purposes.

The Group is party to foreign currency forward contracts
and plain option contracts for the management of its
exchange rate exposures. At the balance sheet date, the
total fair value relating to outstanding forward foreign
exchange contracts to which the Group was committed
was a net liability of €3.7 millien (of which €4.4 million

is included in other liabilities) compared to an asset of
€3.7 million in 2005.

At the balance sheet date, the national value of
outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts
to which the Group was committed was as follows:

2006 2005
€ in thousands) :
Rights and obligations to buy US dollars 272500 145,719
Rights and obligations to sell GB pounds -81,500
16.Cash and cash equivalents

2006 2005,
€ in thousands}

Cash and equivatents 310,122 175,736
Deposits 127,679 2,641
Cash and cash equivalents 437,801 178,377

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash held by the
Group, highly liguid investrments in money market funds
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less. The carrying amount of these
assets approximates their fair value.

All cash and cash equivalents are available for immediate
use by the Group.
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17.Shareholders’ equity
Number of authorised

ordinary shares (in thousandis) 333,000 333,000
Nurmber of authorised

preferred shares (in thousands) 166,500 166,500
Number of issued and fully paid

ordinary shares (in thousands} 112921 107,281
Par value per share (in €) 0.20 .20

The Company's authorised capital amounts to
€99,900,000 and is divided into 333,000,000 ordinary
shares, each with a nominal value of 20 cents and
166,500,000 preferred shares, each with a nominal
value of 20 cents.

In 2006, 5,640,093 shares were issued following the
exercise of share options by employees (2005: 0).

During the Global Offer in 2005 the Company issued
7,142,857 new ordinary shares at a price of €17.50 per
share which are listed at Eurolist {Eurclist by Euronext
Amsterdam NV). In addition, 138,616 new ordinary shares
were issued to Nick Kaufmann Limited as part of his
remuneration as financial adviser to the Company

during the Global Offer.

Motes 1o the Financial Statements of TomTom NV

18 Share options

The Group adopted a share option plan for members of
management and eligible employees. Under the scheme,
the Supervisory Board may grant options to members of
management to subscribe for shares. The Management
Board may grant options to eligible employees to
subscribe for shares. The purpose of the share option plan
is to retain employees and align the interests of
management and eligible employees with those of
shareholders by providing additional incentives to improve
the Group's perforrmance on a long-term basis.

2006 Z
Btock compensation reserve 1€ in thousands) OCE|
Opening balance 11,589 2614
Stock compensation expense 21,321 5,240
Tax benefit 3,735
Share options exercised -546
Closing balance 32,364 11,689

The tax benefit in 2005 relates to the excess of the tax
basis compared to the accounting basis for stock options
issued to employees.

Share option plan 2003

The compensation under the plan qualifies as 'Equity-
settled share-based payments’. The vesting period under
the 2003 share option plan is three years followed by an
axercise pericd of two years. These terms result in options
under the plan that cannot be transferred, pledged or
charged and may be exercised only by the option holder
over a period of two years starting three years after the
date of the grant. Options expire five years after the date
of grant.

Share option plan 2005

The compensation under the plan qualifies as "Equity-
settled share-based payments’. The vesting period under
the 2005 share option plan is three years followed by an
exercise period of four years. These terms result in options
under the plan that cannot be transferred, pledged or
charged and may be exercised only by the option holder
over a period of four years starting three years after the
date of the grant. Options expire seven years after the
date of grant.

The options will be covered at the time of exercise by
issuing newv shares.
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The following table summarises information about the stock options outstanding at 31 December 2006

Number Exercise Weighted N.mber Wegnted

outstanding rrice average exercsabe average '

per share feranng exercise

fin€1) fe prce

vear of grant (n€),
2003 4,449 0.02 1.02 4,449 0.02
2004 3,746,572 0.75-3.75 260 2.09
2005 4417484 2644-2882 580 2822
2006 2125000 25.50-37.68 6.78 33.25

A summary of the Group’s stock aption plans and the movement during the years 2005 and 2006 is presented below:

2006 Waighted 2005 VWeighted l
average average !
exercise axercise

price pree
{in €} (n €)
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 13,840,224 964 9,415,240 0.91
Granted 2,132,500 33.25 4,424,984 2822
Exercised -5,640,093 0.12
Forfeited -39,119 12.86
Outstanding at the end of the year 10,293,512 19.74 13,840,224 964

Calculation of the value of share options on the date of grant

The fair value of the options granted is determined by the Black and Scholes model. This model is the prescribed model
based upon IFRS 2 “Share-based Payments”. The Black and Schales model contains the input variables ncluding the
risk-free interest rate, volatility of the underlying share price, exercise price and share price at the date of grant. The fair
value calculated is allocated to the three-year vesting period, using the straightine method.

The input into the Black and Scholes model is as follows:

2006 2005
Weighted average share price {(in €) 3323 2858
Weighted average exercise price {in €) 3325 2822
Weighted average expected volatility 40% 38.75%
Weighted average expected life 84 months 68 months
Weighted average risk-free rate 3.74% 3.04%
Expected dividends 0 0

Volatility is determined using industry benchmarking for listed peer group companies as well as the historic volatility
of the TomTom stock. The share price on the date of grant for options granted after the IPO is determined as the
three-day average of the stock price prior to the date of the grant. Prior to the IPQ, the share price was determined
by management using a discounted cash flow model.

The Black and Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options
which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of
highly subjective assumptions, including the expected stock price volatility. The Group’s employee stock options have
charactenistics significantly different from those of traded options, and changes in the subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate.
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19.Provisions

, Warranty Eamout Other Total
}€ in thousards)

Opening balance at 1 January 2005 394 394
iNCreases in provisions 6,733 8,070 7.892 22,695
Utilised 2,047 61 -2,108
Opening balance at 1 January 2006 5,080 8,070 2,831 20,981
Increases in provisions 32,940 10,713 43,653
Utilised -16,525 2,747 -171 -19,443
Released -1,406 -1,406
Closing halance at 31 December 2006 21,495 5323 16,967 43,785

Warranty provision

The Group generally offers warranties for its personal navigation products. Management estimates the related provision
for future warranty claims based on historical warranty claim information, as well as evaluating recent trends that might
suggest that past cost information may differ from future claims.

Earn-out grovision

The provision for earn-ouis relates to the acquisitions of Datafactory and Drivetech in 2005 (see note 22). Under the

sale and purchase agreements, the former shareholders of Datafactory as well as Drivetech are entitled to an additional
purchase price instalment depending on the performance of the acquired companies and related technclogies during
the period 2006-2008. Based upon management's best estimate, the Group provided for the maximum expected earn-
out. The estimated non-current portion amounts to €6.0 million.
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Cther provision

The Group formed a provision for potential legal and tax
risks in various jurisdictions. The legal matters mainly
consist of intellectual property infringement issues.

In the normal course of business the Group receives
claims relating to allegations that TomTom has infringed
intellectual property assets and the companies making
the claims seek payments which may take the form of
licences andfor damages. Some of these claims may be
resisted, some are likely to be settled by negotiation and
others are expected to result in litigation.

The cases and claims against the Group often raise difficult
and complex factual and legal issues which are subject to
many uncertainties and complexities, including but not

20. Deferred income tax

As at 31 December 2006 the Group had an estimated
deferred tax liahility of €1.0 million (2005: €0.8 million).

A deferred tax asset has been recorded amounting

10 €12.1 million {2005: €1.3 million}. The deferred tax assst
and tax lishitity result from timing differences between the
tax and accounting treatment of granted share options,
amortisation of intangible assets and several provisions.

limited to the facts and circurnstances of each particular

case and claim, the jurisdiction in which each

suitis brought and the differences in applicable faw. In the
normal course of business, management consults with
legal counsel and certain other experts on matters related
to litigation. The Group accrues a hability when it is
determined that an adverse outcome is rore likely

than not and the amount of the loss can be reasonably

F 2006 2005
& in thousands)
Deferred tax assets:
To be recovered after more than 12 months 6,927 1,307
To be recovered within 12 months 5,134

12,061 1,307
Deferred tax liabilities:
To be recovered after more than 12 months 86 287
To be recovered within 12 nionths 876 469

962 756

The movement of the deferred tax assets is as follows:

! ! el St Intangbe *rowvisions Total
estimated. I either the likelihood of an adverse cutcome COMpensauon &SSE'S
is reasonably possible or an estimate is not determinable, , expense
the matter is disclosed provided it is material. The directors 1€ thousands)
are of the opinicn that the provision is adequate to 1eSOVe  palance as at
these claims. 31 December 2004
Charged to income 1,011 296 1,307
The methodology used to determine the level of hability
requires significant judgements and estimates regarding ~ Balance as at
the costs of settling asserted claims. Due to the fact that 31 December 2005 101 296 1307
there is limited historical data available the estimated Charged to income 5.361 555 488 1074
tiabiirty cannot be based upon recent settlement Balance as at
experience for similar types of claims. 31 December 2006 6372 555 5134 12,061
€ in thousands) 2008 4B A deferred tax asset is recognised for the stock
compensaticn expense reiated to the share option
Non-current 9,682 9,777 plan 2005,
Current' 34,103 11,204
TJotal 43,785 20,981

' The warranty provision is classified as a current liability.

Motes to the Financial Staternents of TomTom Ny
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The movement of the deferred tax liabifities is as follows:

[ Siock Intang-bie Total
! compersaton assets

' expense

[€ in thousards}

Balance as at

31 December 2004 1,301 1,301
Charged to income 545 -545
Balance as at

31 December 2005 756 756
Charged to income -469 -15,044 -15,513
Acquisitions 15,719 15,719
Balance as at

31 December 2006 287 675 962

A deferred tax liability is recognised for the stock
compensation expense related to the share option
plan 2003.

Increased insight into the commercial tax implications of
acquisitions made in 2005 and 2006 resulted in a gross-up
of intangible assets and the recognition of a deferred tax
liability in June 2006. This non-<cash event had no impact on
net profit. A large part of this gross-up (€15.0 million} was
released during 2006 as a result of amortisation of the
intellectual property and the transfer of intellectual property
between Group companies which resulted in the
recognition of a current tax liability.

21.0ff balance sheet commitments

The Group has longterm financial commitments, which
are not shown in the Group's balance sheet as of

31 December 2006.

These are operating leases for buildings, cars and
office equipment, which consist of:

I 2006 2005
{€ in thousands)
Commitments less than 1 year 7,744 1,698
Commitnients between 1-5 years 12,550 4,753
Commitments longer than 5 years 43

20337 6,451

No discount factor is used in determining the operating
lease commitments.

Notes to the Financial Statements of TemTom NV

As at 31 December 2006, the Group had open purchase
commitments with our contract manufacturers for certain
products and components. Based on our forecasts of the
number of units we will require, our contract manufacturers
crder the requisite component parts from their suppliers.
Our manufacturers have commitments on these
components. In certain circumstances TomTom has a
contractual obligation to purchase these components

from our manufacturers.

Please refer to note 19 for disclosures on tax and legal
ocontingencies.

22 Business combinations

2008

Acquisition of Applied Generics Ltd.

On 11 January 2006, the Group acquired 100% of

the share capital of Applied Generics for a price of
€16.5 million. Applied Generics has developed technology
that makes it possible 1o generate realtime road traffic
information based on the analysis of mobite network
usage and cell-switching. The technology has the
potential to deliver high-quality traffic information

at a fraction of the investment normally required to
generate traffic information.

TomTom classifies the acquisition of Applied Genencs
as an acquisition of a group of identifiable assets and
liabilities which do not meet the definition of a business
under IFRS 3 "Business Combinations”.

2005

Danafactory AG

During August 2005, the Group acquired 100% of

the share capital of Datafactory AG for a price of €14.3
million. Datafactory AG offers an online system for fleet
management. The acquired company contributed
revenues of €2.2 million and a net profit of €0.4 million

to the Group for the period from 25 August 2005 to 31
December 2005. This transaction has been accounted for
using the purchase method of accounting.

Drivetech Inc.

During December 2005, the Group acquired 100%

of the share capital of Drivetech for a price of €2.7 million.
Drivetech is a company that develops navigation software
for the Taiwanese market. The Group consolidated
Drivetech from December 2005 onwards. The transaction
has been accounted for by the purchase method

of accounting.

23 Related party transactions

Al related party transactions within the Group are
eliminated.
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Company income statement of TomTom NV for the year ended 31 December
(before proposed appropriation of result)

Notes 2006 2005
€ in thousands)
Result of subsidiaries after taxation {2) 241M 142,994
Other incormne and expense after tax 3) -1,990 -37
Net profit 222,181 142,957
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as of 31 December

MNotes 2006 2005
€ In thousands) -
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries (2) 426,292 189,202
Current assets
Receivables 2,747 2,740
Intercompany receivable 1 13.620
Cash and cash eguivalents 150,322 101.675
Total current assets 153,070 118,035
Total assets 579,362 307,237
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ equity (£3]
Share capital 22,584 21,456
Share premium 115,075 115,091
Legal reserves (5} 2,804 1,813
Stock compensation reserve 6 32,364 11,589
Retained eamings 155,782 13,437
Result for the year 222,181 142 957
Total equity 560,790 306.343
Provisions 166 179
Inter-company payable 21,028 715
Current liabilities 7,378
Total equity and liabilities 579.362 307.237

Company Balance Sheet of TomTom NV
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1. Presentation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies
The description of TomTom’s (the “Company "'} activities
and the Company structure, as included in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements, also applies
to the Company financial statements.

In accordance with section 2:362 Part 8 of the Netherlands
Civil Code the Company has prepared its Company
financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the Netherlands, applying
the accounting policies as adopted in the consolidated
financial statements (IFRS}. Investments in subsidiaries
are stated at net asset value as the Company effectively
exercises significant influence over them. For more
information on the accounting policies applied and on the
notes to the consolidated financial statements, please
refer to pages 46 1o 50.

The total equity and profit in the Company financial
statements is equal to the consolidated equity.

In accordance with section 402 of Part 9 of Book 2
of the Netherlands Civil Code, a condensed income
statement is included in the financial statenmnents.

2. Investments in subsidiaries
The movements in financial fixed assets were as follows:

Notes Investmeants,

in Group|

companies,
€ in thousands)
Balance as at 31 December 2004
Book value 37,175
Movements 2005
Additions
Cumulative transfaticn adjustment 58
Transfer to stock compensation reserve (6 8975
Result participations 142,994
Balance as at 31 December 2005
Book value 189,202
Movements 2006
Additions
Cumuiative translation adjustment 379
Transfer to stock compensation reserve (3] 12,540
Result participations 224171
Balance as at 31 December 2006
Book value 426,292

3. Otherincome and expense after taxation

The other income and expense consists of the
remuneration of the Management Beard and the
Supervisory Board, and interest income on the Company's
outstanding cash balances. For the remuneration of the
Management Board and Supervisory Board please refer
to note 5 to the consolidated financial staterments.

4, Shareholders’ equity

For the statement of changes in consolidated equity
for the year ended 31 December 2006, please refer to
page 45 in the consolidated financial statements.
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5. Legal reserves 9. Proposed appropriation of result
The Management Board proposes to add the net profit
2006 2008 in full to the retained eamings.
LS I thousands)
Legal reserves at 1 January 1813 961 10'AUdit°r_’s report .
Intemally generated intangible assets 612 794 Reference is made to the auditor's report on page 67.
Cumulative translation adjustment 3719 58
Legal reserves at 31 December 2,804 1813 Management Board
_ _ Harold Goddijn
Internally generated intangible assets 2,352 1740 Ajexander Ribbink
Cunulative translation adjustment 452 73 Marina Whatt
Total legal reserves 2,804 1,813 ¥
Supervisory Board

6. Stock compensation reserve

For detatls of the stock compensation reserve please éndrgw Browr;e
refer to note 18 in the consclidated annual accounts. Uy LEmuyne
Doug Dunn
7. Off balance sheet commitments Armsterdam
The Cormpany has issued several declarations of icint and 99 February 2007
several liability for various Group companies in compliance Y
with Section 403, book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.,
TomTom NV

Declarations were issued during the year for TomTom
International BV and TomTom Sales BV, Statutory Seat Amsterdam
8. Statutory provision with respect
to appropriation of results
According to the Company’s Articles of Association,
the Company’s result is freely at the disposal of the
shareholders, provided that total shareholders” equity
exceeds the called-up and paid-up capital of the Company,
increased by legal and statutory reserves.
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Auditor’s report

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial

statements 2006 of TomTom NV, Amsterdam. The
financial statements consist of the consolidated financiat
statements and the Company financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2006, profit
and loss account, statement of changes in equity

and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and

a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes. The Company financial statements
comprise the Company balance sheet as at 31 December
2006, the Company profit and loss account for the year
then ended and the notes.

Management’s responsibility

Management is responsible for the preparation and

fair presentation of the financial staterments in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Netherlands Civit Code, and for the preparation of the
Managerent Board report in accerdance with Part 9 of
Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code. This responsibility
includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation

of the financial statements that are free from material
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

making accounting estimates that are reasonable

in the circumstances.

Auditor's responsihility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on the financial
staterments based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Dutch lawv. This law requires that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statermenits are free from material misstaterment.

An audit involves performing proceduras to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of materiat misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
nsk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control.

Auditer's Report 1o the Financial Staternents

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion with respect to the consolidatac

financial statements

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements

give a true and fair view of the financial position of

TomTom NV as at 31 December 2006, and of its results
and its cash flow for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Netherlands Civil Code.

Opinion with respect to the Company

financial statements

In our opinion, the Company financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of TomTom NV
as at 31 December 2008, and of its result for the year then
ended in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Netherlands Civil Code.

Report on other legal and regulatory regrirements
Pursuant to the legal requirement under 2:393 sub 5 part
of the Netherlands Civil Code, we repon, to the extent of
our competence, that the Management Board report is
consistent with the financial statements as required by
2:391 sub 4 of the Netherlands Civil Code.

Amsterdam, 22 February 2007

Deloitte Accountants B.V.
A. Sandler
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[ 2002 2003 2004 2005 L2006
{€ in thousands}

Profit and loss

Revenue 7,886 39,129 192,429 720,031 1,363,758
Cost of sales 3,483 19,745 107,192 409,194 785,131
Gross profit 4403 19,384 85,237 310,837 578,627
Research and development expenses 918 2,209 4,554 8,849 36,244
Marketing expenses 219 2637 19,391 63,556 100,812
Selling, general and adminisirative expenses 1,495 4,566 16,811 38014 80,033
Stock compensation expense 103 1,044 5,241 21,321
Total operating expenses 2,632 9.415 41,800 115,760 238.410
Operating profit 1,771 9,969 43,437 196,077 340,217
Financial income and {expense), net 9 525 774 14,664 24,681
Profit before tax 1,780 9,444 42,663 208.741 315,536
Income tax 419 3,263 14,946 66,784 93,355
Net profit 1,361 6,181 27,717 142,957 22181
Balance sheet

Nar-current assets 562 1,164 3.010 22,320 59,170
Irventory 557 2218 13,402 103,183 123,005
Trade receivables and other receivables 2,853 10,681 34,358 156,069 282310
Other financial assets 3,651 682
Cash and cash equivalents 807 6,895 40,167 178,377 437,801
Total assets 4,779 20,958 90,837 463,600 902,968
Equity 1,679 7,593 37.806 306,343 550,790
Provisions 70 394 20,981 43,785
Non-current liabilities 1,301 1,057 1,300
Current liabilities 3,100 13,295 51,436 135,219 307,093
Total liabifities 4,779 20,958 90,937 463,600 902,968
Cash flow

Cash generated from operations 1.018 8715 44,464 102,402 392,118
Net increase in cash and cash eguivalenis 415 6,088 33,272 138,135 264,050
Exchange rate differences 75 -4,626
General

Average number of employees 38 75 150 316 627

TomTom NV in the Last 5 Years
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TomTom International
Rembrandipiein 35
1N 7 CT Amsterdam
The Netherlangs

Tel: +31 {0020 850 0800
Fax: +31 020 850 1099

TomTom USA

150 Baker Avenue
Coneord, MA 01742
United States of America

Tel: +1 978 287 9555
Fax: +1 978 287 9522

TomTem UK
169 Euston Road

_ London, NwW1 2a8E

United Kingdom

Tel: +44 {01207 387 5444
Fax: +44 (0)207 255 5770

TemTom Germany
Bauwarerring 21

D - 82041 Oberhaching
Germany

Tel +49 {0)89 678 0490
Fax: +49 )89 678 04910

TomTom France

47-49 Avenue Edouard Vaillant
92100 Boulogne Bitancourt

France

Tel" +33 1 7098 96 14
Fax: +33 1 70 98 96 Ot

TomTom Raly

F. k2 Biancamano, B
1 -20121 Milano
Haly

Tet: +39 02 6203 2152
Fax: +39 02 6203 4000

_TomTom lberia

C/ Ribera del Loria, 46

- {Campo de las Naciones)

28042 Madid
Spain

Tel +34 {0)91 503 0172
Fax: +34 {031 503 G099

TomTom Australia
Building 1

Suite 3, Level 3

3 Bichardson Place
North Ryde NSW 2113
Australia

Tel: +61 2 8875 1700
Fax: +61 2 9889 8856

TomTom Belgium
Uitbreidingsstraat B4
2600 Berchem
Belgium

Tel: +31 )20 8501 172
Fax: +31 {0120 8501 089

TomTom Asia
32F, No. 66, Sec.1
Jhongsiao W, Road
Taipei City 10018
Taiwan {R.0.C.}

Tel +886 Q)2 2331 5e89

Fax: +886 {012 2331 6589
TomTom WORK Leipzig

Maximilianaliee 4
004129 Leipzig
Gemnany

Tel. +49 (0124 124 4950

Fax +43 {(N34 124 49525

All written correspondence intended
for investor Relatiors shouia be
addressed to:

TomTom NV
Investor Relations
Rembrandiplein 35
1017 CT Amsterdam
The Netherlands

Tel: +31 (120 753 5194

We are regstered with the Trade Fegater
o the Craneer of Cermmig ce ot A
Lok urner 224568 O coporenz e
15 in Amsterdam We rave gur Nusmgsy
addiess af Rerrbigndipler 39, 1017 27
Amste-dam, the Netharanss

Desgred and oroouced by
greymatier wlams ana phoa, Londen
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1017 CT Amsterdam
Tre Netherlands

Tel. +31 {020 850 GBOO
Fax: +31 {0120 850 1099

WAWLICMITOIM.CON

TomTom 1L
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TomTom Unveils the New TomTom RIDER - Its Award Winning Navigation
Solution for Bikers

Amsterdam, 11 April 2007 ~TomTom, the world’s largest navigation solution provider,
today announces the launch of the new TomTom RIDER, TomTom'’s all in one navigation
solution designed for bikers by bikers.

The new TomTom RIDER will come in two versions: TomTom RIDER Europe will feature
complete door-to-door navigation anywhere in Western Europe and TomTom RIDER
Regional will come with maps for a specific region or country.

Combining ease of use, portability, a touchscreen that is specially developed for use with
gloves and TomTom's award winning software, the new TomTom RIDER is the perfect tool

to ensure bikers can safely and reliably get from A to B.

In addition to being waterproof, the new TomTom RIDER comes with a new Cardo scala-
rider” Bluetooth® headset for in-helmet spoken instructions. The new headset fits open and
closed helmets and has exceptional noise cancellation performance to ensure that bikers can
hear directions and phone calls with unparalleled clarity.

TomTom RIDER also comes with a new RAM® mount that fits on virtually all motorbikes and
is easy to mount. Its design is renowned worldwide to withstand the toughest conditions
bikers may encounter.

To ensure ultimate safety, the new TomTom RIDER features a secure dock on which the
RAM mount fits easily, as well as a unique four icon user interface that is ideal for gloves.

“TomTom RIDER is the first ever navigation solution specifically designed for motorbikers
and the world’'s best-selling. This hew TOMTOM RIDER gives bike riders more of what they
love when navigating on their bikes — high quality, easy to use and safe navigation, in
addition to impeccable vocal instruction, smart services and extras to ensure they have a
great bike experience,” said Harold Goddijn, TomTom'’s chief executive officer.
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ANNEX B
For bikers who own a car, TomTom RIDER also has a car-kit accessory that allows the

TomTom RIDER to be used in a car much like the TomTom GO and the TomTom ONE ranges.
This car-kit accessory can be purchased for just €79.95.

The new TomTom RIDER will be available from end-May 2007. Pricing is expected to be
between Euro 500 and 600.

TomTom HOME will also be available to TomTom RIDER users. TomTom HOME is TomTom’s
free software application enabling users to manage, download, store and transfer content
from their computer onto their TomTom device.

Content and services provided by TomTom'’s unique PLUS offering are available for TomTom
RIDER as well, managed through TomTom HOME

2

For more information please contact: - .3
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Investor Relations and Financial Press »

Taco Titulaer Gl e

Investor.relations@tomtom.com R i
+ 31 (0) 20 850 1170 e
[R]

About TomTom

TomTom NV is a leading provider of personat navigation products and services. TomTom's products are developed
with an emphasis on innovation, quality, ease of use and value. TomTom's products include all-in-one navigation
devices which enable customers to navigate right cut of the box; these are the award winning TomTom GO family,
the TomTom ONE range and the TomTom RIDER. TomTom PLUS, is the location-based content and services
offering for TomTom's navigation products easily available through TomTom HOME. TomTom also provides
navigation software products which integrate with third party devices; the TomTom NAVIGATOR software PDA's
and smartphones. TomTom WORK combines industry leading communication and smart navigation technology with
leading edge tracking and tracing expertise. TomTom's products are sold through a network of leading retailers in
20 countries online. TomTom was founded in 1991 in Amsterdam and has offices in Europe, North America and
Asia Pacific. TomTom is listed at Euronext, Amsterdam Stock Exchange in the Netherlands. For more information,
go to www.tomtom.com.

Notice on forward-looking statements

This release includes forward-looking statements regarding TomTom NV and its business. These
statements are based on the company's current plans, estimates and projections, as well as its
expectations of external conditions and events. In particular the words "expect”, "anticipate”,
"estimate”, "may”, "should”, "believe" and similar expressions are intended to identify
forward-looking statements, as are any statements regarding TomTom NV's future product
introductions, releases and updates. Forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and
uncertainties and speak only as of the date they are made. The forward-looking events and
circumstances discussed in this release may not occur and actual results could differ materially as a
result of known and unknown risk factors and uncertainties affecting TomTom, including, but not
limited to, the risk factors listed under "Business Risks" in the company's 2006 Annual Report,
available at http:/ /investors.tomtom.com/tomtom/re 06/ . TomTom NV undertakes no
obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new
information, future events, or otherwise
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